
If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

                        

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL: 
 

A. LIMTIED PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
 

C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 
 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE 
a. Approved Minutes of: 

i. Township Board Minutes 11/10/15 

ii. Parks and Trails Committee Minutes 11/06/15 

2. ACTION: 
a. Approve Draft Minutes of: 

i. Planning Commission Minutes 11/09/15 

b. Adopt 2016 Meeting Schedules for: 
i. Planning Commission 

ii. Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR:  
1. ___________________________________________ 

2. ___________________________________________ 

 

F. CORRESPONDENCE: 

1. Planning and Zoning News, Vol. 34 No. 1, November 2015 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS: none 

 

H. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Amendment 036: Medical Marihuana Dispensaries and Cultivation Operations 

2. Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance 

3. Tent Sale Ordinance 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. PUD/SUP 2015-04 Minor Amendment with Site Plan Review – LochenHeath Golf Cottage 

2. 2015-06 Site Plan Review – Gokey Apartments 

3. Planning Commission Agenda Format 

 

J. PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER PC BUSINESS 
1. Zoning Administrator update on projects 

2. Planning Consultant 

3. PC Education, etc.:  

 

ADJOURN: 

                                             

ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

December 14, 2015 7:00 p.m. 
 



DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

                        

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER : 7:01pm 
 

ROLL CALL: 

PC Members Present:  D. Rosa, D. White, S. Feringa, K. Wentzloff, M. Timmins, T. Forgette, B. Balentine, and 

J. Jessup. 

PC Members Absent: J. DeMarsh  

Staff Present: S. Winter, Zoning Administrator; J. Iacoangeli, Township Planner; J. Jocks, Counsel 

 
 

A. LIMTIED PUBLIC COMMENT: Start Time; 7:02pm 

 

Andy Andres, 1107 Barlow St.  Want to find out more about M-72 and PUD ordinance. Andres Trust has 40 

acres. 

 

B. Kelley, Ridgecrest Road. Spoke to the Gokey Apartment agenda item. He is concerned with proximity to creek 

and 50 foot buffer designation. He did not find stormwater detail sheets or the runoff volume calculations and 

they are an important component of the process and the planning commission meeting packet for public to review 

at the meeting.  Liked use of basins under parking lot but did not see a survey on soil types and specifically 

problem types. Thought perk tests should be required.  He is concerned about lack of detail of existing vegetation 

and saving of it to act as a natural buffer.  Due to sensitivity of site, an environmental assessment should be 

required before project approval.  

 

Closed at 7:06pm 
 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
 

Motion by Timmins to approve the agenda with the change of moving the order of items I and H with New 

Business being first on the agenda. Support by Forgette. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None noted. 
 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

S. Winter asked to remove Planning Commission Minutes from 11/09/15. 

 

Motion made by Timmins to approve consent calendar with removal of Planning Commission minutes of 

11/09/15. Support by Balentine.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE 
a. Approved Minutes of: 

i. Township Board Minutes 11/10/15 

ii. Parks and Trails Committee Minutes 11/06/15 

2. ACTION: 
a. Approve Draft Minutes of: 

i. Planning Commission Minutes 11/09/15 

b. Adopt 2016 Meeting Schedules for: 
i. Planning Commission 

ii. Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR:  
1. _Planning Commission Minutes 11/09/2015  ______ 

ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

December 14, 2015 7:00 p.m. 
 



DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

2. ___________________________________________ 

 

S. Winter suggested a change in the minutes at the end of the public comment (front page) regarding the conversation 

exchange between he and Mr. Mattson and the Acme Plaza.  At the end of the paragraph, Winter would like to add verbiage, 

Winter recommended that tenants discontinue displaying merchandise until clarification and options can be provided.  Mr. 

Mattson agreed. 

 

Motion made by Timmins to approve the Planning Commission minutes of 11/09/15 with the added language change at the 

end of public comment, “Winter recommended that tenants discontinue displaying merchandise until clarification and options 

can be provided.  Mr. Mattson agreed”; support by White.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 

F. CORRESPONDENCE: 

1. Planning and Zoning News, Vol. 34 No. 1, November 2015 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS: none 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. PUD/SUP 2015-04 Minor Amendment with Site Plan Review – LochenHeath Golf Cottage 

S. Winter provided a summary of the review for the above site plan.   

 The Applicant wishes to convert an existing two-story single family structure into a golf course 

cottage for members and their guests.  The building was formerly used as an administrative/sales 

office 

 The attached site plan review details the minimal structural changes needed to convert the building 

into a six bedroom, six and a half bathroom cottage.  The maximum number of guests that could be 

accommodated is 14, but a more typical number is eight, primarily on the weekends between April 

and October.  Most food preparation and consumption will occur at the golf club’s restaurant.   

 Minimal impact is expected from this project.  The majority of guests will already be visiting the 

club to golf, there will be no new entrances (existing entrance off interior road), or signage along 

US-31. 

 The applicant’s proposal provides a use for currently vacant building that fits the nature and 

character of the existing golf course use.  Providing onsite lodging options appears to be a growing 

trend in the golf industry. 
Little land disturbance as there is an existing building and water and sewer present. Planning commission members’ 

discussion included concern over short-term rentals.  Being a commercial use, the issues may not apply to this development.  

Applicant representative indicated the purpose of the use is for building their memberships.  Units will be located about 400 

yards from clubhouse.  Wentzloff indicated the maximum number accommodated would be 16 based on the number of 

double beds.  S. Winter has spoken to the applicant that some updates to site plan need to be done. 

 

 Motion by Timmins to approve PUD/SUP 2015-04 Minor Amendment with Site Plan Review for the 

LochenHeath Golf Cottage subject to completion, submission and approval by the Zoning 

Administrator or Planner of the following: 

1. Updated site plan to include: 

 Removal of dumpster 

 The location and species of two trees (canopy or evergreen) and 10 small shrubs 

along the US-31 right-of-way between the existing beech trees where the driveway is 

to be removed (§7.5.6(e)) 

 Correction of the compass arrow direction 

 Stamped/sealed by engineer 

 Date of final revision 

2. The final approved set of site plan drawings to be signed by the Chairperson of the Acme 

Township Planning Commission and the Applicant, or their designated representative. 

 

Support by Rosa.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

2. 2015-06 Site Plan Review – Gokey Apartments 

 

John Iacoangeli provided summary of proposal and site plan review.   



DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

 The Applicant is proposing to build a multifamily housing development at the end of Holt Rd.  The 

development will occur in two phases, with Phase I being reviewed at this time.   

 This use is allowed by right in the Mixed Housing Neighborhood (MHN) district. 

 

The property location is bordered by Acme Creek to the north and zoning requirements require a 50’ buffer.  Site plans 

indicate very little disturbance to existing vegetation. Development complies with all aspects of code with respect to density.  

Outstanding issues at time of review have been addressed.  Interesting part of the project is the use of low impact design for 

stormwater which does not direct it towards the creek but rather to underground stormwater system under the parking lots.  

Design criteria meets all specifications with the exception of a missing infiltration tests that the township engineer has 

requested to assure stormwater percolates fast enough.  The County Soil Erosion-Sedimentation Control Report indicated the 

soils are of types that allow for excellent drainage and low erosion potential. GT Metro Fire noted that since the development 

is not served by public water, a 24 hour monitoring system will be required. The applicant indicated that these were to be 

done.  

 

Discussions occurred to address public comment.  Applicant went over project plan and phasing with planning commission. 

Edge of creek was closely checked and verified for the application. Applicant has done hand borings to confirm soils.  An 

infiltration test is yet to be done per Applicant.  Should the infiltration testing are unsatisfactory, applicant will return to 

review further options.  Stormwater designed for back to back 100-year storms.  Additional discussions with applicant and 

commission members included stormwater controls to protect the creek during construction, tenants’ change of use of buffer 

zone to be limited, new parking code requirement, infiltration tests, apartment construction type and materials, and moving of 

dumpster.  Buffer zone of 50’ is nearly flat and then a steep slope to creek that is not accessible or walkable.  This is the 

purpose of the second silt fence. Project would not have been able to be done under old code.  Natural buffer will remain. 

Tenants will not be allowed to have pets. Tenants will not be doing their own outdoor maintenance. Applicant is requesting 

approval for both phases with the second phase to be built in future and subject to review process at that time. 

 

  Motion by Timmins  to approve the site plan submitted by Todd Gokey for the 

construction of 24 townhome apartments to be built in two phases located on 2.17 acres 

with the following stipulations: 

1) The approved site plan consists of Sheets 1 through 5 with a date to be written in the 

lower right corner under the sheet title (i.e. C1.1) by the Chairperson of the Planning 

Commission. 

a) Sheet C0 – General Information Plan 

b) Sheet C1.1 – Demolition Plan 

c) Sheet C1.2 – Site and Dimension Plan 

d) Sheet C1.3 – Utility Plan 

e) Sheet C1.4 – Grading, Drainage & Soil Erosion Plan 

2) The approved site plan package is signed by the Chairperson of the Planning Commission 

and the Applicant, or their representative. 

3) The southern edge of the parking lot will not include a curb and shall be used for snow 

storage. 

4) All recommendations from the Township Engineer regarding stormwater management 

shall be instituted and comply with Section 6.6.6.5. 

5) Parking lot light poles shall not exceed the height of the roof (not the peak or main 

entrance structure) and shall be in conformance with Section 6.6.6.3. 

6) Because the development is residential-only and not a mixed use project the height of 

first floor does not need to comply with Section 6.6.5.2 – First Floor Ceiling Height. 

7) A final landscape plan that complies with Section 7.5.6 Landscaping shall be submitted 

and approved by Beckett & Raeder prior to issuance of a Land Us Permit. 

8) All agency permits must be provided to the Township prior to the issuance of the Land 

Use Permit. 

9) All comments from review agencies are required to be addressed and included in the final 

plans. 

Support by Forgette.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

3. Planning Commission Agenda Format – S. Winter provided a draft sample of agenda format.  Primarily to 

move some of the presenters to more of the front of the meeting and the general housekeeping to the end of 

meeting.  J. Jocks suggest we look at township policies and procedures.  Wentzloff suggests removing the 

consent calendar to expedite, but a motion would be required for each of the Receive and File items and 



DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

Action items.  Wentzloff would also like the addition of the 3 minute limit requirement for public 

comment.  Andy Andres look at the TC Commission requirements.  Summarize same issue in one 

comment. 

 

 

I. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Amendment 036: Medical Marihuana Dispensaries and Cultivation Operations 

Legal counsel provided clarification of his disagreement with the County’s position on this ordinance. J. Jocks 

provided explanation and feels we should move ahead with approval of ordinance. He feels the county is 

misunderstanding the township ordinance.  County disagrees with J.Jocks interpretation. Dispensaries are not 

illegal unless operated illegally. Further discussion occurred with respect to who can go into grow stations to meet 

law requirements.  

 

Motion by Timmins to recommend approval by the Township Board for the adoption of Amendment 036 – 

Medical Marihuana Dispensaries and Cultivation Operations in the B-4 Material Processing and Warehousing 

District 

 

Support by Rosa.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

2. Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance 

John Iacoangeli provided a history of the ordinance.  Adopted by board previously around 2002 but was rejected 

by a referendum vote.  The ordinance up for review now, is nearly the same one.  Suggested changes to the draft 

ordinance language were included.  Per the Planning Commission’s request, S. Winter provided a report that was 

included in the packet that provides examples of developments created using PUD’s throughout the area.  Also 

included in the report were a number of illustrative examples from the book “Rural by Design”, written by 

Randall Arendt.  Benefits of PUD are: 

 PUD’s provide developers with more flexibility in the development of their land that may 

otherwise be prohibited through traditional zoning practices. 

 Allows for a mix of uses, densities, parcel sizes, open space preservation, etc. within a 

single development  

 Comprehensive planning of the development at a holistic level provides a better balance of 

land uses, economic feasibility and environmental protection  

 Streamlines the development process by overcoming the need to constantly amend SUP’s 

and/or seek zoning ordinance amendments/variances 

A local case of PUD in action is the re-development of the old Norris Elementary site.  John Iacoangeli 

discussed how this could also work within the agriculture community.  A discussion occurred with 

examples of how it might work with recent projects.  A PUD cannot be used to circumvent zoning. John 

Iacoangeli wanted to know whether to keep agriculture zone in or out.  Mr. White thought we should keep 

it in but thought that all PDR already have the restriction.  But there are some agriculture properties that 

are not in the PDRs that they may want to use the option.  Any PUD still has to conform to the master 

plan.  PC members thought PUD was good idea as an additional option and provides flexibility.  K. 

Wentzloff wanted to note that Scheffer Farms is not what we are looking for.  We want to keep 

conservation in big chunks as opposed to fragmented.  John I. referred to Figure 17-9 of Rural by Design 

as a better example. John I. likes to refer to these as Planned Development (PD) because we don’t have a 

minimum acreage requirement.  S. Winter referenced conversation with developer that a PD requires 

them to put the best plan forward right up front.  It gets recorded in the land record.  K. Wentloff would 

like for the proposed ordinance be reviewed to make sure we note all of things the township emphasizes 

in site reviews such as stormwater, native plantings, etc. 

 

Motion by White to set a public hearing for the Planned Unit Development (PUD) draft amendment to the 

Acme Township Zoning Ordinance at the January 11, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting.  Support by 

Feringa. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 



DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

3. Tent Sale Ordinance – S Winter provided a synopsis with things to consider 

Not a lot of consistency with respect to these requests and should there even be a standard.  Winter 

wanted to know if this was to be a police power ordinance or zoning ordinance. 
 

Jocks indicated that we have to look at each property restrictions; don't want to do parking lot tents as a 

zoning ordinance.  Better suited to be treated as a special event.  John I. suggested talking to building 

code people as there are some safety issues and concerns related to public tents. J. Jocks suggested go to 

township board and approach them about special events ordinance. 

 

S. Winter asked about food trucks as a police power ordinance.   John I recommended making it a police 

power ordinance so that they have to pull permit so that it makes it an administrative function only; no PC 

ordinance. 
 

 

 

J. PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER PC BUSINESS 

9:05pm Public comment - closed at 9:05 

 

1. Zoning Administrator update on projects – S. Winter provided a summary report. 

 Land Use Permits – 2 issued since the November 9th PC Meeting 

 New Home – 1 

 Accessory/Addition – 1 

 Sign Permits – 2 

 Next Month: 

 Bravo Zulu SUP Major Amendment (potentially) 

o Addition of a restaurant, changing use to a brew pub 

o Will require a public hearing 

 

2. Planning Consultant 

3. PC Education, etc.:  New township meeting schedules released.  M. Timmins updated PC on park 

and trail committee.  Park shoreline and trail committee looking to connect the three points.  

Engineering is getting off the ground.  Wentzloff attending Acme to Charlevoix trail meeting.  

Feels it is very nicely done and comprehensive.  Brief discussion on closing gap in the trail and 

preliminary engineering needs. 

 

ADJOURN: Motion to adjourn Timmins; support Balentine.  Motion carried unanimously. 

                                             



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
To: Acme Township Planning Commission 

From: Shawn Winter, Zoning Administrator 

CC: Jeff Jocks, John Iacoangeli 

Date: December 9, 2015 

Re: December 14, 2015 Planning Commission Packet Summary 
                
 
Below is a summary of select items on the Planning Commission agenda.  Where applicable, suggested actions 

have been provided.    

 

I. Consent Calendar             

a. 2016 Meeting Schedules 

 Please review the proposed dates to see if there are any conflicts 

 It has been asked that the ZBA calendar be adopted/approved by the PC since they do not meet 

regularly. 

 

II. Old Business             

a. Amendment 036: Medical Marihuana Dispensaries and Cultivation Operations 

 Jeff Jocks will be present to provide legal interpretation of the Michigan Medical Marihuana 

Act, and how it relates to the proposed Amendment, as well as the County Planning 

Commission and Staff’s review comments. 

 Suggested Motion, upon interpretation and clarification by Acme Township Attorney: 

 Motion to recommend approval by the Township Board for the adoption of Amendment 

036 – Medical Marihuana Dispensaries and Cultivation Operations in the B-4 Material 

Processing and Warehousing District 

 

b. Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance 

 PUD’s were reviewed at the previous meeting with no action taken.  John Iacoangeli will be 

available to answer Commissioner’s questions.  Suggested changes to the draft ordinance 

language have been included as comments in the attached document. 

 Per the Planning Commission’s request, a report has been included that provides examples of 

developments created using PUD’s throughout the area.  It was eye-opening to see the extent at 

which PUD’s are used in surrounding communities.  If you have a chance to visit any of these 

developments I would encourage you to do so.  Also included in the report are a number of 

illustrative examples from the book “Rural By Design”, written by Randall Arendt. 

 PUD’s provide developers with more flexibility in the development of their land that may 

otherwise be prohibited through traditional zoning practices. 

 Allows for a mix of uses, densities, parcel sizes, open space preservation, etc. within a single 

development  

 Comprehensive planning of the development at a holistic level provides a better balance of land 

uses, economic feasibility and environmental protection  

Memo 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 Streamlines the development process by overcoming the need to constantly amend SUP’s 

and/or seek zoning ordinance amendments/variances 

 Suggested Motion: 

 Motion to set a public hearing for the Planned Unit Development (PUD) draft 

amendment to the Acme Township Zoning Ordinance at the January 11, 2016 Planning 

Commission Meeting. 

c. Tent Sales  

 The topic of regulating tent sale events has briefly came before the Planning Commission this 

fall, but with no action taken or real direction given. 

 Request have continued to come in regarding tent sales in the Township 

 There’s no clarity or consistency in how to deal with tent sales currently. 

  Does the Planning Commission want this to be regulated or unregulated use in the Township?  

Questions to consider if the desire is to regulate tent sales: 

o Zoning Ordinance or Police Power Ordinance (i.e. Special Events) 

o Time limits, similar to temporary signs (60 days a year) 

o Land Use Permit required for the erection of a tent? 

o Limited to certain districts, commercial properties  

o Emphasis on location and duration, not content of sale 

 

III. New Business             

a. PUD/SUP 2015-04 Minor Amendment with Site Plan Review – LochenHeath Golf Cottage 

 The Applicant wishes to convert an existing two-story single family structure into a golf course 

cottage for members and their guests.  The building was formerly used as an administrative/sales 

office 

 The attached site plan review details the minimal structural changes needed to convert the 

building into a six bedroom, six and a half bathroom cottage.  The maximum number of guests 

that could be accommodated is 14, but a more typical number is eight, primarily on the 

weekends between April and October.  Most food preparation and consumption will occur at the 

golf club’s restaurant.   

 Minimal impact is expected from this project.  The majority of guests will already be visiting the 

club to golf, there will be no new entrances (existing entrance off interior road), or signage along 

US-31. 

 The applicant’s proposal provides a use for currently vacant building that fits the nature and 

character of the existing golf course use.  Providing onsite lodging options appears to be a 

growing trend in the golf industry. 

 Suggested Motion: 

 Motion to approve PUD/SUP 2015-04 Minor Amendment with Site Plan Review for the 

LochenHeath Golf Cottage subject to completion, submission and approval by the 

Zoning Administrator or Planner of the following: 

1. Updated site plan to include: 

 Removal of dumpster 

 The location and species of two trees (canopy or evergreen) and 10 small shrubs 

along the US-31 right-of-way between the existing beech trees where the driveway 

is to be removed (§7.5.6(e)) 

 Correction of the compass arrow direction 

 Stamped/sealed by engineer 

 Date of final revision 

2. The final approved set of site plan drawings to be signed by the Chairperson of the Acme 

Township Planning Commission and the Applicant, or their designated representative. 

 

 



Page 3 of 4 
 

b. Site Plan Review 2015-06 – Gokey Apartments 

 The Applicant is proposing to build a multifamily housing development at the end of Holt Rd.  

The development will occur in two phases, with Phase I being reviewed at this time.   

 This use is allowed by right in the Mixed Housing Neighborhood (MHN) district. 

 Suggested Motion: 

 Motion to approvethe site plan submitted by Todd Gokey for the construction of 24 

townhome apartments to be built in two phases located on 2.17 acres with the following 

stipulations: 

1) The approved site plan consists of Sheets 1 through 5 with a date to be written in the 

lower right corner under the sheet title (i.e. C1.1) by the Chairperson of the Planning 

Commission. 

a) Sheet C0 – General Information Plan 

b) Sheet C1.1 – Demolition Plan 

c) Sheet C1.2 – Site and Dimension Plan 

d) Sheet C1.3 – Utility Plan 

e) Sheet C1.4 – Grading, Drainage & Soil Erosion Plan 

2) The approved site plan package be signed by the Chairperson of the Planning 

Commission and the Applicant, or their representative. 

3) The southern edge of the parking lot will not include a curb and shall be used for 

snow storage. 

4) All recommendations from the Township Engineer regarding stormwater 

management shall be instituted and comply with Section 6.6.6.5. 

5) Parking lot light poles shall not exceed the height of the roof (not the peak or main 

entrance structure) and shall be in conformance with Section 6.6.6.3. 

6) Because the development is residential-only and not a mixed use project the height of 

first floor does not need to comply with Section 6.6.5.2 – First Floor Ceiling Height. 

7) A final landscape plan that complies with Section 7.5.6 Landscaping shall be 

submitted and approved by Beckett & Raeder prior to issuance of a Land Us Permit. 

8) All agency permits must be provided to the Township prior to the issuance of the 

Land Use Permit. 

 

c. Planning Commission Agenda Format 

 Changing the format of the Planning Commission Agenda has been discussed recently.   

 The Township Board recently changed their format to better accommodate those presenting 

reports, consultants, contracted partners, etc.   

 The idea is to move items that require applicants or counsel to comment on to the front of the 

agenda.   

 Robert’s Rules of Order have been used as a guide, but never formerly adopted, therefore 

allowing latitude to make necessary changes.   

 A draft version with this meeting’s agenda has been attached.  This only one possible option, 

and certainly up for debate among the Planning Commissioners.   

 

 

IV. Other PC Business            

a. Zoning Administrator Report 

 Land Use Permits – 2 issued since the November 9th PC Meeting 

o New Home – 1 

o Accessory/Addition – 1 

 Sign Permits – 2 

 Next Month: 

o Bravo Zulu SUP Major Amendment (potentially) 



Page 4 of 4 
 

a. Addition of a restaurant, changing use to a brew pub 

b. Will require a public hearing 
 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees November 10, 2015 Page 1 of 3 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

               6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

            Tuesday, November 10, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by Eagle Scout, Sam Rojewski at 7:00 p.m. 

 

  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema, G. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 

  Members excused: None 

  Staff present:              N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 

                     

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: None 

  

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

Jenema requested that we add to Reports #8 Trails and Park Update. 

 

Motion by White, seconded by Scott to approve the agenda with the addition of Trails and Park 

update under Reports #8.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

                   

C.       APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES 

1.      Draft unapproved minutes 10/06/15 

Zollinger stated there was one correction to the minutes on pg 2 under New Business # 1.  A motion was 

made by Jenema and seconded by Scott. Scott’s name was not recorded.  LaPointe brought up the motion on  

pg 3 on the Holiday Hills SAD final billing and the use of “with a minimal per parcel”  Minutes will be corrected 

removing the word “minimal” to say “final per parcel”. 

 

             Motion by Dye, seconded by LaPointe to approve the Board draft minutes of 10/06/15 with the one 

  correction and clarification on a Holiday Hills SAD for the final billing motion at the 10/06/15 meeting 

  Motion  carried by unanimous vote. 

 

D.       INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

 

E.       REPORTS: Received and File 

1.     TCAPS Update 

        2.        Clerk – Health Insurance 

        3.        Parks – Henkel 

        4.        Legal Counsel – J. Jocks 

        5.        Sherriff 

        6.        County 

        7.        GTCRC 

        8.        Trails and Parks Update 

                          Jenema passed around a DRAFT plan for North Bayside Park that Winter  worked  up a conceptual  

                          drawing with (free)  software that was available to him.  Discussion followed.   

 

                  Motion by Scott, seconded by Aukerman to approve spending $2,500.00 from the 208 fund 

                  for a grant writer for enginerring, development for Bayside park.  Motion carried by unanimous 

                  roll call vote. 

  

 

  F.      SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: Eagle Scout Project/Sam Rojewski 

    S.Winter, Zoning Administrator, introduced, Sam Rojewski, a junior at Traverse City Central, a Boy 

            Scout working on his Eagle Scout rank. Winter stated that the process calls for creating and directing a 

            service project.  Rojewski reached out to Winter, collaborating with the Conservancy a project dealing with 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees November 10, 2015 Page 2 of 3 
 

           autumn olive in the Yuba Natural area was created.  Rojewski has an area roughly 500’ x 500” by the north side 

           parking  lot that he will work eradicating autumn olive.  

 

 

            Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott, to approve up to $300.00 for purchasing supplies for eradicating 

            Autumn Olive for the project.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

  

G.         CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together    

      one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in the a 

      agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

a. Treasurer’s Report  

b. UClerk’s Revenue/Expenditure Report  and Balance Sheet  

c. North Flight report 

d. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

                                       1.      Planning Commission 10/12/15 

             2.         APPROVAL:  

                          a.          Accounts Payable Prepaid of $3,224.93 and Current to be approved of  $90,116.17 

            (Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

                       

             Motion by Jenema, seconded by Dye to approve the consent calendar with the removal of the Treasurer’s 

             Report 1 a.  and 2 a. Current Bills to be paid. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

  H.      ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

             LaPointe asked Jenema about the “208”, “401” and the Shoreline funds. Jenema explained the two new 

             Funds. Discussion followed. 

 

             Motion by LaPointe, seconded by White to approve the Treasurer’s report as presented. Motion 

             carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

              LaPointe had a question on page 8 of the current bills for Peninsula Construction & Design. Dye explained it 

              was a reimbursement for a Trust and Agency account. 

 

              Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Jenema to approve the Current Bills as presented. Motion carried by 

              unanimous roll call vote.          

                                    

   I. CORRESPONDENCE:  None 

                

   J.        PUBLIC HEARING: None 

                        

   K. NEW BUSINESS: 

             1.         Resolution for MDOT Annual Permit for Operations within State Trunkline Right-of-Way 

              

                         Motion by Jenema, seconded by White to approve Resolution R-2015-42 for the annual permit for 

                         Operations within State Trunkline Right-of-Way. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

              

2.     Resolution for Budget amendments Parks maintenance due to storm damage cost 

 

    Motion by Scott, seconded by LaPointe to approve Resolution R-2015-43 allowing fund moves due 

    to mainintenance expenses from August storm damage.  Motion carried by a roll call vote of 6 in 

    favor (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, Scott, LaPointe, White) and 1 opposing (Zollinger) 

 

    Zollinger informed the Board that we have received two bids for rebuilding Shelter 2 and roof repair 

    on Shelter 3.  We are expecting one more bid.  Discussion followed. 

 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees November 10, 2015 Page 3 of 3 
 

 

    Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott to authorize Zollinger to accept the lowest bid on rebuilding 

    structures at Sayler Park.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

             3.         Farmland presentation/status - McDonough 

                         McDonough reviewed three grants  that have been submitted in the last 45 days on behalf of Acme 

                         Township.   

                                                    

  L.        OLD BUSINESS: 

1.    Sayler Park Boat  Launch 

             Aukerman financial status: Reviewed fund raising update for Sayler Park Boat Launch 

             Zollinger project status:  Zollinger referred to the “GANTT chart” attached to the report which shows 

             where we are on the timeline. Klaus will continue to keep the Board informed. 

 

2.          Springbrook SAD update status 
             A copy of the letter sent to Springbrook SAD residents was included in the Board packet.  64 surveys 

             were mailed out with 48 responses received back. 58% yes and 42% no. If a minimum of 60% of the 

             property owners within the proposed SAD approve the creation of the SAD or 75% of those responding to 

             the survey approve the creation of the SAD the project is forwarded to the Township Board for review,  

             acceptance and the creation of the required Resolutions.  Based on the above statement and the results 

             received Acme Township will not be continuing this effort. 

 

           

               PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD: None 

 

 

               ADJOURN AT 9:10 am 

 

  



APPROVED 11/20/15 

 

 1

 

Acme Township Meeting Minutes 

Subject:  Long-term Parks Goals and N. Bayside Park Improvement Plan 

ACME TOWNHIP HALL 

6042 Acme Road; Williamsburg, MI  49690 

Friday, November 6, 2015; 9:00am – 11:00am 

 
 

Meeting began at 9:05am. 

 

In Attendance   

Members of “Committee” appointed by Acme Board at its June 11, 2015, Special Board Meeting “Work 

Session on Parks” to look at long-term goals for the Parks: 
Representing the Board:  Gordie LaPointe (not present); Conservancy:  Matt McDonough; Parks Advisory:  

Marcie Timmins; Parks & Building Maintenance:  Tom Henkel. 

 

Members of “Committee” appointed by Acme Board at its October 6, 2015, Regular Board Meeting to move 

forward to connect Tart Trails as presented by Julie Clark (TART) at that meeting: 
Jim Heffner (not present); Amy Jenema; Marcie Timmins; Karly Wentzloff; Shawn Winter.  Julie Clark, TART, 

was also present. 

 

Invited by Marcie Timmins to facilitate meeting and take minutes:  Jean Aukerman 
  

Desired Outcomes 

1. Determine long-term goals for Acme’s Parks based on June 11 Board vote and tied to Acme’s approved 

“Parks Master Plan for 2014 – 2019.” 

2. Agree on actionable Preliminary Plan for North Bayside Park improvements. 

3. Determine actions, deadlines, and ownership for all next steps. 

 

A.  Opening remarks and process 

Jean explained Desired Outcomes.  She also strongly recommended that Acme’s Objectives (projects) should be 

owned and driven by a leader from Acme rather than delegating that responsibility to someone from the 

Conservancy or TART.  Matt McDonough (GTRLC) and Julie Clark (TART) concurred.  Some discussion 

followed.  Later in meeting, Jean introduced the “Issue Bin” concept where Committee Members can list any 

barriers to achieving Objectives that arise during the meeting – for resolving in future.   

 

No public comment.  No members of the Public were in attendance. 
 

B.  Per Master Plan, discussion of long-term goals in three categories 

Sample Goals and Objectives tied to the Parks Master Plan were distributed by Jean to start discussion.  

Discussion and prioritization occurred.  The joint Committee agreed to the following long-term Goals and 

prioritized Objectives to bring back to the Board: 

 

Goals based on Acme’s 5-year “Parks Master Plan 2014 – 2019” 

1. ACCESS TO BAY:  Provide access to Grand Traverse Bay for all ages, all abilities. 

2. ATTRACTIVE PARKS:  Ensure parks are attractive, recreation opportunities are provided, water 

quality is protected. 

3. TRAIL CONNECTIVITY:  Connect park assets, shops, restaurants, and attractions through non-

motorized transportation routes. 

 

Proposed Objectives, Priority, Acme Owner, Action/Deadlines – for Board approval 



APPROVED 11/20/15 

 

 2

 

 

1.  ACCESS TO BAY 

 

► Priority 1 

By September 1, 2016, an improved, ADA-compliant Boating Access Site is opened at Sayler Park. 
Acme Owners:  Jean Aukerman/Fund Raising; Jay Zollinger/Project Oversight 
Action/Deadline:  Funds still needed.  Aukerman/Zollinger to present status at Nov 10 Board Meeting.   

 

► Priority 2 

By July 1, 2016, Mobbi Mats are in safe operation at North Bayside for access by beach-goers in wheelchairs. 
Acme Owner:  Marcie Timmins 

Action/Deadline:  Marcie to speak with experts, determine options/costs by Dec 15.   

 

► Priority 3 

By August 1, 2017, an ADA-compliant canoe/kayak launch is in full operation at Bunker Hill site. 
Acme Owner:  OPEN 
 

► Priority 4 

By June, 2016, a blueway route/”Water Trail” with specific Shore Access Zones is in operation in Acme 

Township. 
Acme Owner:  Amy Jenema 

Action/Deadline:  Amy to check status with Harry Burkholder by December 1.   

 

2.  ATTRACTIVE PARKS 
 

► Priority 1 
By August 1, 2016, at least 3 conspicuous and/or functional park projects are installed at North Bayside Park 

totaling <$400k. 
Acme Owners:  Shawn Winter, Amy Jenema 

Action/Deadline:  Matt McDonough to call CZM Grant contact and ask:  1) if MDNR Trust Fund money can be 

used as match with CZM award; 2) what is/isn’t eligible in terms of construction and activities.  Matt to then 

update Shawn, Amy, Karly.  Determine what specific CZM grant request and focus should be.  Amy to 

present/gain approval for grant writer at Nov 10 Board mtg.  Amount/focus for CZM grant to be presented to 

Board for approval at its December Board meeting.  CZM grant deadline is December 18. 
 

► Priority 2 (Committee agreed this priority is critical in order to support/deliver Priority 1.) 

By September 1, 2016, a $20k reserve for waterfront parks maintenance is in place with priorities set and 

managed.  

Acme Owners:  Amy Jenema, Jean Aukerman 

Action/Deadline:  Jean and Amy to confirm language (ex: “reserve” not accurate) by December 15. 
 

► Priority 3 
By September 1, 2016, a tight work plan and schedule are in place to manage Autumn Olive at Yuba Natural 

Area. 

Acme Owner:  Shawn Winter 

Action/Deadline:  Shawn to contact Angie Lucas, Americorps, others for information. 
 

► Priority 4 
By August 1, 2017, at least 1 conspicuous and/or functional improvement is installed at South Bayside Park 

totaling <$150k. 
Acme Owner:  OPEN 



APPROVED 11/20/15 

 

 3

 

 

3.  TRAIL CONNECTIVITY 
 

► Priority 1 – Tied  
By June 1, 2016, minimum 10-ft wide trail is in operation from M72 to North Bayside Park, through Park and 

property immediately south and also through South Bayside Park. 
Owner:  OPEN 

 

► Priority 1 – Tied  

By September 1, 2017, new TART trail is in operation from Bunker Hill parking area north to M72. 
Acme Owner:  OPEN 

 

► Priority 3 
By November 1, 2016, TART trail connects M72 to Lautner trailhead via route through GTTC (Town Center). 
Acme Owner:  OPEN 

 

► Priority 4 

By September 1, 2017, minimum 6-ft wide bike lanes are installed on Bunker Hill east to Launter and south 

connecting to South Bayside Park. 
OPEN 

 

► Priority 5 
By September 1, 2017, a fully-negotiated Trail Plan is ready-to-implement from North Bayside to Acme 

Township’s north border. 
Acme Owner:  OPEN 

 

 

C.  Discuss components of Preliminary Plan; gain agreement 

1.  Re-visiting expectations of MDNR Trust Fund, Donors.  Matt McDonough reiterated that the Trust Fund 

expects acquired North Bayside parkland to be used for public recreation including amenities that facilitate 

public access.  Donors and community members want to see something happening with the land.  Committee 

discussed importance of:  improved parking; trail connectivity within Park and north, east, and south of Park; 

need for Mobbi Mat(s) for safe water access for people using wheel chairs; irrigated open space; shelter area(s); 

using current rest room facilities – which still function well, rather than tearing down and building new.   
 

2.  Review of a potential plan that answers expectations.  Shawn Winter showed a DRAFT Plan for North 

Bayside Park that he worked up using (free) software that was available to him.  Discussion followed.  All were 

pleased with Shawn’s efforts to take the discussion from an earlier Parks Team meeting on August 11 and 

translate that discussion into a DRAFT Plan for review.  Shawn explained that the software he used has some 

limitations that we should know about (ex:  only does right angles – no curves when showing sidewalks and 

trails).  Shawn’s DRAFT Plan served as an excellent first tool to visualize the possible use of space at North 

Bayside Park.   

 

Comments/discussion points included: 

 

Regarding fund raising for Park improvements 

● Figure out “Phasing” for improvements as it applies to fund raising (CZM and DNR Trust Fund Grants, etc.). 

● Always be aware of which grants require “matching” dollars and how that can be achieved. 

● Acme has skin-in-the-game (dollars) – great – but let’s be sure to identify and track in-kind donations, where 

allowed, to further build Acme’s “matching dollars” total. 
● Conservancy interested in helping with fund raising. 



APPROVED 11/20/15 

 

 4

 

● TART interested in helping with fund raising. 

 

Regarding Park’s design and amenities 

● Consider irrigation within entire North Bayside Park – not just for the green space; get cost estimate. 

● At beach area, consider seat walls instead of rip rap (ex:  Clinch Park).  Seat walls do same job as rip rap 

while using space better and being easier to maintain.  

● Perhaps move playground under the trees next to the beach to provide a shaded area. 

● Gardens and native species good place for signage/interpretation while also helping manage water issues. 

● Add curves to trails/sidewalks etc. 

● Consider having trail make a loop within North Bayside Park. 

● Consider widening main trail to 12 feet due to likelihood/potential of heavy traffic (pedestrians, strollers, 

bikes, people pulling beach gear, etc.). 

● Consult with/gain input from Disability Network on their recommendations. 

 

Regarding Park’s connectivity 
● Connect trail all the way to M72/US 31 intersection; show it on the Plan. 
● Need to consider safe connections to the other side of US31 so businesses can support “connections.” 

● Show connection to Resort property on the Plan. 
 

D.  Review next steps, actions, deadlines, ownership RE North Bayside Park Improvements 

See complete list of Actions/Deadlines under B. 

 

Specific to North Bayside Park and CZM grant (repeated from B): 

 

Action/Deadline:  Matt McDonough to call CZM Grant contact and ask:  1) if MDNR Trust Fund money can be 

used as match with CZM award; 2) what is/isn’t eligible in terms of construction and activities.  Matt to then 

update Shawn, Amy, Karly.  Determine what specific CZM grant request and focus should be.  Amy to 

present/gain approval for grant writer at Nov 10 Board mtg.  Amount/focus for CZM grant to be presented to 

Board for approval at its December Board meeting.  CZM grant deadline is December 18. 
 

Issue Bin 

► Are our Parks officially named – North Bayside Park and South Bayside Park?  When can we officially name 

parks and have proper signage? 
 

► RE “easements,” how are we managing these?  Have we verified location and existence? 
 

► Private business employees parking on public property (ex:  Vet Clinic) – don’t allow this. 
 

► Need a Grant Strategy for North Bayside Park fund raising. 

 

► What is status of Acme’s Parks & Recreation Advisory committee? 
 

 

Meeting was adjourned at 11:08am. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jean Aukerman 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

                        

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE at 7:01pm 

  
 

ROLL CALL:       

PC Members Present:  D. Rosa, D. White, S. Feringa, K. Wentzloff, M. Timmins, T. Forgette, B. Ballentine, 

and J. DeMarsh  

Members Excused: J. Jessup 

Staff Present: S. Winter, Zoning Administrator 
 

A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: Opened at 7:03pm 

 

Murray Mattson, 9869 Kay Ray Road, Owner of Acme Plaza.  Asked commission members for clarification on 

the signs posted along the building and the use of merchandise.  Does not feel the use of merchandise placed in 

front of storefront constitutes a sign. What he would like to see is for tenants to get a temporary permit for signage 

along roadway itself but be allowed to put a few things in front like a window sign without a permit.   

 

Mark Johnson, 5555 Arnold Road.  Introduced himself to PC members as one of the three principal owners of MI 

Local Hops. 

 

Public Comment closed 7:07pm 

 

Mr. Winter thanked Mr. Mattson for his assistance as there have been issues with Plaza tenants regarding signage.  

He read into the record the sign ordinance. By definition, the displaying of merchandise for advertising purposes 

constitutes a sign.  Discussion occurred with respect to difference between this and signage as written as part of a 

SUP (such as Tractor Supply).  In the case of the Plaza SUP, a sign variance was specifically not allowed.  

Attorney review was recommended. 

 
 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion to approve agenda made by Timmins, support by Ballentine.  

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 
 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE 
a. Draft Unapproved Minutes of: 

i. Township Board Minutes 10/06/15 

 

2. ACTION: 
a. Approve Draft Minutes of: 

i. Planning Commission Minutes 10/12/15 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR:  
1. ___________________________________________ 

2. ___ Planning Commission Minutes 10/12/15____ 

 

Rosa asked to remove the Planning Commission minutes of 10/12/15.  Motion by Timmins to approve the consent 

calendar as presented for #1 only, support by White.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

November 9, 2015 7:00 p.m. 
 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

PC Chair Wentzloff read into record an email received from B. Kelley, Ridgecrest Road, requesting suggested 

corrections to the Planning Commission minutes from 10/12/15.  Discussion occurred among members regarding 

Public Meeting Minutes protocol and requirements.  Discussion occurred and chair emphasized that it is not the 

role of the secretary to quote or provide meeting play by play but to summarize what happens during the meeting.  

The request for changes acknowledged but not incorporated into 10/12/15 minutes. A copy of email is attached to 

these minutes. 

 

Rosa requested grammatical correction on page 12 for Ken Petterson.  Wentzloff also noted a grammatical 

correction for Jim Heffner. 
 

Motion by Timmins to approve the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of 10/12/15 with grammatical 

corrections for names of Petterson and Heffner; support by DeMarsh.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 
 

F. CORRESPONDENCE: 
1. Planning and Zoning News – September and October.  October issue has Traverse City as one of the target 

market analysis cases. 

 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. SUP Minor Amendment/Site Plan Review 2015-03: Ken Flannery, 6671 E M-72 

Mr. Winter summarized the application for all those present and Mr. Flannery answered PC member questions.  

SUP 95-06P approved the construction and use of two storage unit buildings. Approximately 2/3 of West Bldg. 

was constructed and eventually sold to the Applicant. Property is currently used for light machine shop which is 

allowed by right in the district. Applicant wishes to apply for an SUP Minor Amendment to build the rest of the 

West Bldg. (Phase I), along with necessary pavement additions, dumpster screening, landscaping, storm water 

improvements, and entrance improvements along the access easement.  Applicant intends to apply for an SUP 

Minor Amendment for Phase II in the future to build the East Bldg. after resolving a fire hydrant placement issue, 

per Grand Traverse County Metro Fire.  Soil erosion and Sedimentation Control permits have been submitted.  

Planning commission along with applicant discussed requirements for off-street loading and unloading for Phase 

I.  Planning commission members determined the requirement to be satisfied. 

 

Motion by Ballentine to approve the SUP Minor Amendment 2015-03 with Site Plan Review subject to 

completion, submission and approval by the Zoning Administrator/Planner of the following: 

 

1) The final approved set of site plan drawings to be signed by the Chairperson of the Acme Township 

Planning Commission and the Applicant or their designated representative 

 

Support by Timmins.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

2. SUP Minor Amendment 2015-05: Flintfields, 6535 Bates Rd 

Mr. Winter summarized the application for all those present. Applicant wishes to extend the duration of the 

equestrian competition from four weeks to eight weeks.  The site has been selected to host an international 

equestrian event sanctioned by the United States Equestrian Federation (USEF) and the Fédération Equestre 

Internationale (FEI).  The extended event will occur approximately one week after the end of the current event, 

with most of the participants staying for the entire eight weeks.  This will be an annual, reoccurring event.  Staff 

review of this request has been found to have minimal negative impact while providing a beneficial economic 

impact to the community. PC members discussed. 

 

Motion by Ballentine to approve SUP Minor Amendment 2015-05 to allow for the extension of the annual 

equestrian event at Flintfields Horse Park from four weeks to eight weeks.  Support by DeMarsh.  Motion passed 

unanimously. 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

 

3. Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance 

Mr. Winter presented the PC members with information pertaining to Planned Unit Developments (PUD) and 

provided additional reading material for review.  Benefits of a PUD ordinance can include:   

 

1)  PUD’s provide developers with more flexibility in the development of their land that may otherwise be 

prohibited through traditional zoning practices; 

2)  Allows for a mix of uses, densities, parcel sizes, open space preservation, etc. within a single development;  

3)  Comprehensive planning of the development at a holistic level provides a better balance of land uses, 

economic feasibility and environmental protection; 

4)  Streamlines the development process by overcoming the need to constantly amend SUP’s and/or seek zoning 

ordinance amendments/variances. 

 

Mr. Winter explained that the current ordinance presenting challenges and a PUD ordinance would be beneficial 

for a several current developments such as MI Local Hops, Flintfields and LochenVest. A PUD would avoid 

cookie cutter zoning while allowing the township to preserve valuable spaces by shifting densities.  PC member 

DeMarsh commented that PUD’s are not uncommon and present progressive thinking that provides latitude for 

unique pieces the township is trying to protect such as wetlands and open spaces.  Mr. White thought the township 

discussed adoption something like this before and thought it was approved.  Mr. Winter indicated that it was not 

approved and Chair Wentzloff thought the non-approval had something to do with the agriculture district and it 

may have been contentious.  Changing the software component to digital format and incorporated changes when 

they occur and recorded. Called a consolidated master deed.  Wentzloff concerned with areas where the use of a 

PUD may have a negative impact.  PC members decided to continue this discussion at next month’s meeting.  
 

I. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Amendment 036: Medical Marihuana Dispensaries & Cultivation Operations – Shawn 

Winter 

 

Township received comments from the Grand Traverse Planning. Discussions occurred regarding County 

comments.  Gray areas are still gray. Moving forward with amendment to properly zone seems best action to 

protect the township. Further actions on this amendment were tabled for next month since there are some 

unanswered questions that need to be addressed by the township attorney. 

  

2. Zoning Ordinance Rewrite Update - Shawn Winter, John Iacoangeli 

 

Mr. Winter provided an update on the Zoning Ordinance re-write in John’s absence and provided a proposed 

schedule from the township planner.   Key components of the update process: 

 Streamlining the SUP and Site Plan Review Process 

 Identifying quantifiable thresholds that would allow more reviews to be done administratively.  

Possibilities include additional trip generation and increases in storm water run-off 

 Continue to recodify the existing Zoning Ordinance, approximately 50% completed 

 M-72 Overlay District conflicting with the US-31/M-72 Business District. Staff trying to determine the 

intent of the overlay, as well as its usefulness moving forward. 

 Complete recodifying Zoning Ordinance 

 Review sections as a Commission during the upcoming meetings 
 

 

J. PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER PC BUSINESS 

 

Public Comment period opened at 8:07pm 

Murray Mattson, 9869 Kay Ray Road.  Commented on upcoming considerations for zoning.  Specifically for 

common areas within housing developments and the challenges that occur between public and private use. 

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

Jim Heffner, 4050 Bayberry Lane.  Encourages all to take a walk along the Grand Traverse Town Center (GTTC) 

storm water systems.  There are woodchip pathways around the system, interpretive signs explaining what you are 

seeing with respect to native plants/species.  Vegetative growth appears established and overall the swale system 

very impressive 

 

Sally Erickson, 2228 Cranberry Court, Traverse City. Commented to PC that has done lots of PUD's as a 

developer and feels it puts more tools in the planning commission toolbox and provides more input for the 

township on developments. Port of Old Mission is an example. Forces developers to think big picture. 

 

Public Comment closed at 8:12pm. 

 

1. Zoning Administrator update on projects 

 

 

Land Use Permits – eleven (11) issued since the October 12th PC Meeting 

1. New Home – 4 

2. Accessory/Addition – 4 

3. Commercial – 3 

 

Bayside Park Volunteer Clean-Up Day was a success.  40 – 50 people participated, removing about 5 trailer loads 

of debris.  A lot of support was shown by residents and businesses. 

 

Dan Rosa, Steve Feringa, John Iacoangeli and Shawn Winter attended the Master Planning for Resilient 

Waterfront Communities on October 29th.  A lot of information was presented regarding shorelines, watersheds 

and legal issues.  Overviewed successful, precedent plans from throughout the state. Allowed them to compare 

Acme with others and Feringa felt as a Township we were on the correct tract. 

 

 

Next Month: 

1. Set 2016 meeting dates 

2. LochenVest Bed and Breakfast SUP review 

2. Planning Consultant 
3. PC Education, etc.:  

 

Wentzloff shared that Shawn has been working on drawings for Bayside Park and working group formed with 

Acme planning commission, board members and others in community and T.A.R.T.  Group is working to close 

the Acme gap from Bunker Hill trailhead to either the Charlevoix trail and they also identified two other 

connections to GTTC/M72 Business District and Lautner trail head.  Putting lines on maps. Township Board has 

put together a committee on parks; Shawn has worked on north base plan to set goals.  Work needs to be done to 

figure out funding, grants, etc.  Starting to figure out what we are going to do. Excited about moving forward on 

this. 

   

Shawn Winter presented the recently accepted special recognition Award for the Acme Township Master Plan 

presented by Grand Traverse County Chapter of the MTA and the Grand Traverse County Planning Commission. 

 

 

ADJOURN:  Timmins motion to adjourn, support by Ballentime. Motion passed unanimously. Meeting adjouned 

at 8:17pm 

                                             



1

Shawn Winter

From: Brian Kelley <acmetwp@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 11, 2015 3:19 PM
To: Karly Wentzloff
Cc: Trae Forgette; Shawn Winter
Subject: Re: Correction to meeting minutes

Hi Karly, 
 
Thank you for your reply. 
 
The quotes were for reference and context only, not necessarily to go verbatim into the minutes. The public was told 
that the water could not freeze, and that statement should be in the minutes ‐ whether or not as a direct quote. JohnI 
stated an inspection would occur prior to the end of the growing season, and that milestone also warranted inclusion in 
the minutes. 
 
On the latter point, I believe the growing season ended some weeks ago, and Cardno should have already been out 
there. How can they evaluate vegetation after numerous freezes? 
 
  Brian 
 
 
On 11/10/15, Karly Wentzloff <karly.wentzloff@gmail.com> wrote: 
> The item was removed from the consent calendar. I read your email. No  
> changes were made regarding this, but your note will be attached to  
> this month's minutes. I would like to again stress that the minutes  
> are not to make verbatim statements, but record discussion topics and  
> motions during the meeting. Thank you. 
> 
> Karly 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> On Mon, Nov 9, 2015 at 6:04 PM, Brian Kelley <acmetwp@gmail.com> wrote: 
> 
>> Hi Trae, 
>> 
>> I am not certain that I will make the early part of the meeting  
>> tonight. Please consider the following two suggested corrections to  
>> the 2015‐10‐12 PC minutes: 
>> 
>> A key part of Mr. Reilly's response to the concerns regarding basin  
>> inlet freezing was his quote that "The reality is moving water  
>> doesn't freeze." 
>> 
>> I did not see that quote in the draft minutes. Please include the  
>> quote as part of Mr. Reilly's response in the final minutes. 



2

>> 
>> Second, in the final public comment I asked if John Iacoangeli could  
>> have Cardno return to the site and give a review, since they had not  
>> visited since late July.  Mr. Iacoangeli ultimately stated that  
>> "We'll have cardno out by the end of the growing season." 
>> 
>> Could you please also include that in the final minutes? 
>> 
>> (CC'ing Karly and Shawn in case Trae does not receive this email) 
>> 
>> 
>> Thank you, 
>> 
>>    Brian 
>> 
> 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
To:  Acme Township Planning Commission 

From: Shawn Winter, Zoning Administrator 

CC: John Iacoangeli, Jeff Jocks 

Date: December 9, 2015 

Re: 2016 Meeting Dates 
              
 
Below are the proposed dates for the 2016 Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals 
meetings.  The Planning Commission dates follow the same schedule of the 2nd Monday of the 
month.  The Zoning Board of Appeals Chair requested following their same schedule of the 2nd 
Thursday of the month, with the understanding that flexibility will be available since the demand 
for ZBA meetings is low.  The Chair has agreed to have the Planning Commission approve/adopt 
their schedule, if allowed, since they do not meet regularly. 
 
 
 

Proposed 2016 Meeting Dates 
Planning Commission Zoning Board of Appeals 

January 11 January 14 

February 8 February 11 

March 14 March 14 

April 11 April 14 

May 9 May 12 

June 13 June 9 

July 11 July 14 

August 8 August 11 

September 12 September 8 

October 10 October 13 

November 14 November 10 

December 12 December 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
enc: ZBA Chair correspondence, reference calendar 

Memo 



2016 
 

January  February  March 
S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S 

     1 2   1 2 3 4 5 6    1 2 3 4 5 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  7 8 9 10 11 12 13  6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  14 15 16 17 18 19 20  13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23  21 22 23 24 25 26 27  20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30  28 29       27 28 29 30 31   

31                       

                       

April  May  June 
S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S 

     1 2  1 2 3 4 5 6 7     1 2 3 4 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  8 9 10 11 12 13 14  5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  15 16 17 18 19 20 21  12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23  22 23 24 25 26 27 28  19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30  29 30 31      26 27 28 29 30   

                       

                       

July  August  September 
S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S 

     1 2   1 2 3 4 5 6      1 2 3 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  7 8 9 10 11 12 13  4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  14 15 16 17 18 19 20  11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23  21 22 23 24 25 26 27  18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30  28 29 30 31     25 26 27 28 29 30  

31                       

                       

October  November  December 
S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S 

      1    1 2 3 4 5      1 2 3 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8  6 7 8 9 10 11 12  4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15  13 14 15 16 17 18 19  11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22  20 21 22 23 24 25 26  18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29  27 28 29 30     25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

30 31                      

Proposed Planning Commission meeting dates 
Proposed Zoning Board of Appeals meeting dates 
Adopted Township Board meeting dates 
 



1

Shawn Winter

From: Shawn Winter
Sent: Friday, November 20, 2015 9:52 AM
To: 'Joe Kuncaitis'
Subject: RE: 2016 Meeting Schedule

Sounds good Joe.  The idea of having the PC approve it so you all wouldn’t have to meet was thrown out there by 
Jay.  We’ll get it taken care of for you! 
 
Have a great weekend,  
 
Shawn Winter 
Zoning Administrator 
Acme Township 
6042 Acme Rd | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 
Phone: (231) 938-1350  Fax: (231) 938-1510   
swinter@acmetownship.org 
 

From: Joe Kuncaitis [mailto:jkuncaitis@aol.com]  
Sent: Friday, November 20, 2015 9:50 AM 
To: Shawn Winter <swinter@acmetownship.org> 
Cc: Jay Zollinger <JZollinger@acmetownship.org> 
Subject: Re: 2016 Meeting Schedule 
 
Shawn, I was not aware that the P.C. Had to approve the meeting schedule of the ZBA.           Leave it as the 2nd 
Thursday of the month with you retaining some flexibility as to adjusting as may be needed and enough of the ZBA 
members able to attend. That schedule has worked for many years. Thanks for your follow up.                  Joe Kuncaitis 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Nov 20, 2015, at 9:03 AM, Shawn Winter <swinter@acmetownship.org> wrote: 

Good morning Joe,  
  
Typically in December the Boards/Commissions set their meeting dates for the coming year.  Since you 
all don’t actually meet regularly it would seem unnecessary to hold a meeting just to set the dates.  How 
would you like to address this?  Make it official in some way that says the meetings are by 
request/need?  Or we could set the dates the same time as usual (2nd Thursday) and have the Planning 
Commission approve it?  Just let me know what works best for you all. 
  
Thanks,  
  
Shawn Winter 
Zoning Administrator 
Acme Township 
6042 Acme Rd | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 
Phone: (231) 938-1350  Fax: (231) 938-1510   
swinter@acmetownship.org 
  



GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MASTER PLAN/ZONING REVIEW 

 
Pursuant to Section 307 of Public Act 110 of 2006, a township shall submit for review and 

recommendation the proposed zoning ordinance or zoning ordinance amendment to the county.  The 
county will have waived its right for review and recommendation of an ordinance if the 

recommendation of the county planning commission has not been received by the township within 30 
days from the date the proposed ordinance is received by the county. 

 
TOWNSHIP:  Acme Township  MASTER PLAN:  
AMENDMENT #: 036    ZONING ORDINANCE: 
DATE RECEIVED:  October 13, 2015 TEXT:   MAP:  
PUBLIC HEARING:  October 12, 2015  MAP ATTACHED:  

PRELIMINARY REVIEW:    PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES:   (to follow) 

 

CHANGE:   
• Allows for medical marihuana dispensaries and cultivation operations in the B-4 Material Processing 
and Warehousing District through a Special Use Permit.  
• Reduces the buffer between dispensaries and/or cultivation operations from 1000 to 500 feet.   
• Reduces hours of operation from 7:00 am – 10:00 pm to 8:00 am – 8:00 pm. 
• Adds public and private youth recreation facilities to 1000 foot buffered uses. 
• Adds “medical marihuana cultivation operation” as a new definition. 
• Makes minor text adjustments. 

TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED TO TOWNSHIP BOARD: 
Approval. From the Township, “Due to newly acquired park properties that require a 1000 foot buffer, 
there is no place in the Township where a medical marihuana dispensary can exist.  Furthermore, 
medical marihuana cultivation was a prohibited use.  In order to prevent exclusionary zoning, the 
Planning Commission has been exploring medical marihuana dispensaries and cultivation operations, 
as allowed under the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act (MMMA), in the B-4 Material Processing and 
Warehousing District.” 

COUNTY PLANNING STAFF COMMENTS: 
It is our understanding that the MMMA does not provide for dispensaries and that the 2013 Michigan 
Supreme Court ruling that dispensaries are illegal and may be closed down by county prosecutors as a 
public nuisance (refer to the August, 2015 edition of Planning & Zoning News). Nonetheless, many 
communities across Michigan continue to zone and allow for dispensaries. The State House recently 
passed legislation to establish the licensing of dispensaries. The legislation will go now to the State 
Senate. In Grand Traverse County, communities have taken various routes in addressing the MMMA. 
Some have been permissive while others have been more restrictive. At this time, given the amount of 
gray area of interpretation of the MMMA and its relationship with local zoning, staff recommends that the 
County Planning Commission concur with the Township Planning Commission’s proposed action. 

COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS: 
After review of the Amendment, the County Planning Commission stated there appears to be some 
inconsistency between the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act (MMMA) and the requirement for the 
special permitting process, and with the internal inconsistencies of the proposed amendment. One 
possible inconsistency includes permitting owner of the property access with access to the cultivation 
operation. MMMA restricts access to only the registered qualifying patient or the registered primary 
caregiver who owns, leases, or rents the property on which the structure is located. Another possible 
inconsistency is whether special use permit can be required for cultivation operations. 
 

RETURNED TO TOWNSHIP (DATE/RECOMMENDATION): Emailed to Acme Township Clerk, 
Planning Commission Chair, and Zoning Administrator on October 21, 2015. 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

AMENDMENT TO ACME TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE 

AMENDMENT 036 – MEDICAL MARIHUANA DISPENSARIES AND CULTIVATION OPERATIONS 

§§ 3.2, 6.11.3, 9.26, 9.27 

 

 The Acme Township Planning Commission has reviewed and considered changes to §§ 3.2, 6.11.3, 

9.26 and the addition of § 9.27 pursuant to the following: 

 

 WHEREAS the Township adopted § 3.2 on November 18, 2008, § 6.11.3 on May 13, 2014, and § 

9.26 on August 2, 2011 

 

 WHEREAS the implementation of § 9.26 has revealed that certain sections of §§ 3.2, 6.11.3 and 

9.26 should be revised to better meet the Township’s zoning goals. 

 

 WHEREAS activities associated with Medical Marihuana, as allowed under the Michigan Medical 

Marihuana Act, require amendment in order to meet those goals. 

 

 Now therefore, the following changes shall be made to §§ 3.2, 6.11.3, 9.26 and the addition of § 

9.27 of the Acme Township Zoning Ordinance: 

 

1. § 3.2 DEFINITIONS will be amended to include the following: 

 

“Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation: A use where Medical Marihuana is grown by a 

Primary Caregiver to be provided to Qualifying Patients under his/her care.  The maximum number 

of plants that shall be allowed on a single parcel used as a Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation 

is sixty (60), unless the Primary Caregiver operating the Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation 

is also a Qualifying Patient, in which case the maximum number of plants allowed on the parcel 

shall be seventy two (72).” 

 

2. § 6.11.3 USES AUTHORIZED BY SPECIAL PERMIT will be amended to add the following uses:  

 

“h.  Medical Marihuana Dispensary” 

 

“g. Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation” 

 

3. § 9.26.2 REQUIRED STANDARDS will be amended as follows: 

 

§ 9.26.2(a) will replace the word “marihuana” with “Medical Marihuana” and will read as: 

 

“a.  The acquisition, possession, delivery or transfer of Medical Marihuana or paraphernalia 

shall comply at all times with the Medical Marihuana Act and the General Rules of the 

Michigan Department of Community Health, as amended.” 

 

§ 9.26.2(c) will be amended to change the hours prohibiting operation from “10:00 pm to 7:00 am” to “8:00  

Planning and Zoning 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350   Fax: (231) 938-1510   Web: www.acmetownship.org 
 

http://www.acmetownship.org/


 
pm to 8:00 am” and will read as: 

 

“ c.  A Medical Marihuana Dispensary shall not operate between the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 

8:00 a.m.” 

 

§ 9.26.2(d) will be removed in its entirety and all subsequent subsections of § 9.26.2 will be renumbered   

accordingly: 

 

d. No Medical Marihuana Cultivation shall occur on the parcel. 

 

§ 9.26.2(e) will add the language “who is under the age of eighteen (18)” and will read as: 

 

“d. Except for parents or guardians of a Qualifying Patient who is under the age of eighteen 

(18) and the Owner or staff of the facility, persons other than a Qualifying Patient or 

Primary Caregiver shall not be permitted within the facility when Medical Marihuana is 

being transferred.” 

 

§ 9.26.2(j) will be amended to change the distance between Medical Marihuana Dispensaries from “1,000”  

feet to “500” feet and language will be added to include “Medical Marihuana Cultivation 

Operation” and will read as: 

 

“i. A Medical Marihuana Dispensary shall not be located within a 500 foot radius of another 

existing Medical Marihuana Dispensary or Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation.” 

 

§ 9.26.2(j)(1) will be amended to change the explanation on measuring distances between Medical 

Marihuana Dispensaries from “1,000” feet to “500” feet and language will be added to include 

“Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operations” and will read as: 

 

“1.  For purposes of measuring the 500 foot radius in this section, the measurement shall be 

taken from the nearest point on the building where the existing Medical Marihuana 

Dispensary or Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation exists to the nearest point on 

the building where the proposed Medical Marihuana Dispensary is proposed.” 

 

§ 9.26.2(j)(2) will be added to allow exception to the distance between a Medical Marihuana Dispensary 

and a Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation when they have been approved to operate on the 

same parcel and will read as: 

 

“2.  Exception shall be made when the operator of a Medical Marihuana Dispensary is also 

approved to operate a Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation on the same parcel as 

granted through a Special Use Permit.” 

 

§ 9.26.2(k) will add language to include “public or private youth recreational facility” and will read as: 

 

“j. A Medical Marihuana Dispensary shall not be located within a 1,000 foot radius of any 

existing public or private elementary, vocational, or secondary school, or a public or private 

college, junior college, or university, or a library, or a playground or park, or a public or 

private youth recreational facility.” 

 

§ 9.26.2(k)(4) will add language to include “public or private youth recreational facility” and will read as: 

 

“4.  For purposes of measuring the 1,000 foot radius in this section, the measurement shall be 

taken from the nearest property line of the existing public or private elementary, vocational, 



 
or secondary school, or public or private college, junior college, or university, library, or 

playground or park, or a public or private youth recreational facility to the nearest point 

on the building where the proposed Medical Marihuana Dispensary is proposed.” 

 

§ 9.26.2(k) will be added that expressly prohibits all activities associated with a Medical Marihuana 

Cultivation Operation unless approved through a Special Use Permit and will read as: 

 

“k. The planting, growing, harvesting, processing and packaging of Medical Marihuana shall 

not be allowed on the parcel unless approved through a Special Use Permit and pursuant 

to Section 9.1 and Section 9.27.” 

     

4. § 9.27 MEDICAL MARIHUANA CULTIVATION OPERATION will be added to regulate the  

planting, growing, harvesting, processing, packaging and storage of Medical Marihuana as defined 

under Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation in § 3.2 under a Special Use Permit, and will read 

as: 

 

“9.27 MEDICAL MARIHUANA CULTIVATION OPERATION 

 

9.27.1 STATEMENT OF INTENT 

 

The purpose of a Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation is to allow an establishment or 

place of business to undertake the following “Medical uses” of Medical Marihuana on the 

property: planting, growing, harvesting, processing, packaging or storing of Medical 

Marihuana to treat or alleviate a registered Qualifying Patient’s debilitating medical 

conditions or symptoms associated with the debilitating medical condition under the 

Medical Marihuana Act.  Acme Township desires to allow all legal businesses to operate 

in the Township, but recognizes the need to zone for all uses to protect the health, safety 

and welfare of the general public.  A Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation must 

satisfy the general standards of Section 9.1, the specific requirements of this Section, and 

all other requirements of the Acme Township Zoning Ordinance.   

 

9.27.2 REQUIRED STANDARDS 

 

a. The planting, growing, harvesting, processing, packaging or storing of Medical 

Marihuana shall comply at all times with the Medical Marihuana Act and the 

General Rules of the Michigan Department of Community Health. 

 

b. The cultivation of Medical Marihuana shall be only allowed by a Primary 

Caregiver for the Qualifying Patients registered under their care. 

 

c. Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operations shall be limited to growing a maximum 

of sixty (60) Medical Marihuana plants for Qualifying Patients.  The maximum 

number of Medical Marihuana plants shall increase to seventy two (72) if the 

Primary Caregiver operating the Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation is also 

a Qualifying Patient.  

 

d. Except for the Owner of the property, persons other than the Primary Caregiver 

shall not be permitted within the Operation when Medical Marihuana is being 

cultivated, harvested, processed, packaged or stored.  

 

e. No person under the age of eighteen (18) shall be permitted into a Medical 

Marihuana Cultivation Operation at any time 



 
 

f. A Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation shall not be owned or operated by, or 

employ, a person that has been convicted of a felony involving controlled 

substances. 

 

g. No use by way of smoking, ingestion, consumption, or any other method of taking 

Medical Marihuana into the body shall occur at a Medical Marihuana Cultivation 

Operation. 

 

h. No more than one (1) Primary Caregiver shall operate a Medical Marihuana 

Cultivation Operation on any one (1) parcel. 

 

i. The cultivation of Medical Marihuana shall only be permitted inside a structure 

not visible from the outside that shall be at all times secured and locked, and shall 

be accessible only by the Primary Caregiver and Owner of the property. 

  

j. Lighting utilized for cultivating Medical Marihuana shall not be visible from the 

exterior of the building.   

 

k. No equipment or process shall be used in which creates noise, dust, vibration, 

glare, fumes, odors or electrical interference detectable to the normal senses 

beyond the parcel boundary. 

 

l. A waste disposal plan shall be included with all applications for an operation 

detailing plans for chemical disposal and plans for Medical Marihuana plant 

disposal. Under no instance shall the incineration of Medical Marihuana plants or 

plant materials be allowed on the parcel.  

 

m. A Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation shall be considered an industrial or 

manufacturing use for purposes of determining Off-Street Parking and Loading 

requirements under the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

n. A Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation shall not be located within a 500 foot 

radius of another existing Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation or Medical 

Marihuana Dispensary. 

 

1. For purposes of measuring the 500 foot radius in this section, the 

measurement shall be taken from the nearest point on the building where 

the existing Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation or Medical 

Marihuana Dispensary exists to the nearest point on the building where the 

proposed Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation is proposed 

 

2. Exception shall be made when the operator of a Medical Marihuana 

Cultivation Operation is also approved to operate a Medical Marihuana 

Dispensary on the same parcel as granted through a Special Use Permit.  

 

o. A Medical Marihuana Cultivation Operation shall not be located within a 1,000 

foot radius of any existing public or private elementary, vocational, or secondary 

school, or a public or private college, junior college, or university, or a library, or 

a playground or park, or a public or private youth recreational facility. 

 



 
1. For purposes of this section the term “library” means a library that is 

established by the state; a county, city township, village, school district, or 

other local unit of government or authority or combination of local units 

of government and authorities; a community college district; a college or 

university; or any private library open to the public. 

 

2. For purposes of this section the term “playground” means any outdoor 

facility (including any parking lot appurtenant thereto) intended for 

recreation, open to the public, and with any portion thereof containing 

three or more separate apparatus intended for the recreation of children 

including, but not limited to, sliding boards, swing set, and teeterboards. 

 

3. For purposes of this section the term “park” means any land or facility of 

any size or shape, including but not limited to linear ways, road ends, and 

submerged lands, that are open to the public and used for recreation or 

held for future recreational use. 

 

4. For purposes of measuring the 1,000 foot radius in this section, the 

measurement shall be taken from the nearest property line of the existing 

public or private elementary, vocational, or secondary school, or public 

park or private college, junior college, or university, or a library, or a 

playground or park, or a public or private youth recreational facility to the 

nearest point on the building where the proposed Medical Marihuana 

Cultivation Operation is proposed. 

 

p. The acquisition, possession, delivery or transfer of Medical Marihuana of 

paraphernalia shall not be allowed on the parcel unless approved through a Special 

Use Permit and pursuant to Section 9.1 and Section 9.26.” 

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Zoning	Administration	
Staff	Report

To: Acme Township Planning Commission

From: Shawn Winter, Zoning Administrator

Cc: John Iacoangeli, Jeff Jocks

Date: December 8, 2015

Re: Planned Unit Development Examples



Planned	Unit	Developments
After the discussion about Planned Unit Developments (PUD) last month, 
the Planning Commission requested examples of how this planning tool has 
been used in the area.  The following pages provide a quick overview 
developments created using PUD’s in Grand Traverse County, Emmett 
County, illustrations of flexible land uses, and a case study that is relevant to 
our township.

The examples from Grand Traverse County come from Garfield and Peninsula 
Townships.  They represent a mix of old and new developments, residential 
only and mixed use, rural and urban settings.  Where possible maps, site 
plans, and background information has been provided.  



Wildwood Meadows

Cherrywood

Port of Old Mission

Peninsula	Township



• PUD at the base of Old Mission Peninsula, just north of the Traverse City/Peninsula 
Township boundary

• Began in in 1981, has progressed through four phases (I‐IIIa)
• Overall density of 1.5 dwelling units per acre through a combination of stand‐

alone, 2, 4, 6, and 8‐plex condos.  
• Target market: 50+ year old demographic
• Private roads and common elements maintained through HOA fees.  Association 

maintains everything from the unit’s exterior paint out
• Had the opportunity to meet with the developer, Sally Eri who shared some 

insights into working with PUD’s:
• Flexibility in lot sizes allowed them to work with the natural landscape features (slopes, 

ridges) while minimizing land disturbance
• Cluster developments make the expansion of infrastructure more feasible.  In this case 

sanitary sewer lines.
• PUD’s force developers to really look at the big picture of how the land is used, forcing 

them to holistically plan all the details including landscaping, utilities, concept building, 
etc.

• Developers have to invest more time upfront in planning and engineering through a 
PUD, but the approval process thereafter runs smoother and quicker.  The result is the 
very best plan gets presented to the Planning Commission from the beginning.

• PUD’s allow more opportunity for public input 

Port	of	Old	Mission



Port	of	Old	Mission



Port	of	Old	Mission
Phase	III	Layout



• Residential PUD located off Center Road (M‐37) at the intersection with 
Mathison Rd S

• Newer development still under construction, approved ~ 2013

• 30 units with approximately 2,500 sq. ft. each built as duplexes

• Preserves a large portion of existing woodland that runs contiguous into 
the nearby Pelizzari Natural Area

Wildwood	Meadows



Wildwood	Meadows



• Older residential PUD located off Mathison Rd

• 13 duplex buildings consisting of 26 units at just over 1,000 sq. ft. 

• High market demand for these properties

• Average density of the development is 1.5 du/ac

• Note the amount of preserved open space compared to the development 
to the immediate west which was created using traditional zoning

Cherrywood



Cherrywood



Premier Place Manor
Scheffer Farms

Buffalo Ridge

Garfield	Charter	Township



• Commercial PUD 

• Phase I in the description below is currently under construction

• “A commercial (redevelopment) PUD project named the Buffalo Ridge 
Center was approved at a Special Meeting of the Town Board on August 5, 
2014. Located at 3639 Marketplace Circle (site of the existing Horizon 
Outlet Mall on US‐31) the project involves removal of the northern half of 
the outlet mall and construction of a 14‐screen movie theater, an 
additional commercial building, and the associated parking area. The 
south half of the site will remain in its present state for the time being 
until future redevelopment opportunities are explored and approved 
through the appropriate amendment.” 

(www.Garfield‐twp.com)

Buffalo	Ridge



Buffalo	Ridge



Buffalo	Ridge
Site	Plan	– Phase	I	shaded	gray



• Proposed mixed‐use PUD near the corner of N Long Lake Rd and 
Zimmerman Rd

• “Sheffer Farms is located on approximately 52 acres of property 
off of North Long Lake Road. The property has a width of 
approximately 877 feet along North Long Lake Road and has a 
depth of approximately 2,471 feet. The applicant has submitted a 
request to the Planning Commission (and Township Board) for 
review and consideration of a mixed‐use PUD, and plans to 
incorporate three 12‐unit apartment buildings, 26 senior cottages, 
a 70‐unit senior living facility, and 58 single family homes on the 
property. This proposed mixed‐use PUD, proposed in the A‐1 
Agricultural zoning district, is still under review. Due to the 
numerous departures from the underlying district, and changes in 
the project, the applicant is required to update their submittal 
documents, provide a complete traffic study, address various 
design issues and identify a public benefit satisfactory to the 
Township.”

(www.Garfield‐twp.com)

Sheffer Farms



Sheffer Farms

N 



Sheffer Farms
Proposed	Site	Plan



• Mixed‐Use PUD already in existence, proposed expansion of 
residential units along the Boardman Lake.

• West of the intersection of Woodmere Ave and Boon St

• Located on the east shore of Boardman Lake, north of 
Boardman Lake Glens, this Planned Unit Development was 
first approved in 2003 and a number of single‐family 
condominium structures have been built. Recently, a 
number of changes have been conceived and brought 
before the Planning Commission. Site plan and building 
design changes are proposed for the apartment area of the 
site.  The application is considered a Major Amendment to 
the development, requiring review before the Planning 
Commission and eventual decision by the Township Board.

(www.Garfield‐twp.com)

Premier	Place	Manor



Premier	Place
Existing	Development	Location



Premier	Place	Manor
Proposed	Development	Location



Premier	Place	Manor
Propose	Site	Plan



Bay	Harbor
Further to the north is the resort and residential community of Bay Harbor. 
The PUD development is located along five miles of Lake Michigan shoreline 
just west of Petoskey on US‐31. At the time the project began the property 
was an abandoned cement factory.   Over the last 22 years it has become a 
community of its own, with residential homes, vacation homes, marina, 
equestrian center, golf course, restaurant and retail establishments, the 
Great Lakes Center for the Arts, special events, and more.  In this case, the 
PUD allowed the developers to take an abandoned property which was 
becoming a nuisance to the community and turn it into a valuable 
development that is a showpiece for the region.  The following pages contain 
an interesting article from the Northern Express that chronicles the history 
of the project and the hurdles that had to be overcome on the way to 
achieving the vision of the developer and community.   















Illustrations	&		Case	Studies
The following are excerpts from Randall Arendt’s book “Rural by Design”.  
The purpose of this section is to provide illustrations of how the flexibility 
provided in PUD’s allows for more creative land use design.  This flexibility 
benefits the public by preserving valuable lands, as called for in the Master 
Plan, that provide the character of Acme Township, while maintaining the 
economic feasibility of future projects to developers.  I understand the 
illustrations have been removed from the context of their chapter, but the 
captions do a good job at providing an explanation.  Please note the case 
study “The Ponds at Woodward” that details the preservation of a working 
orchard.  

Arendt, R.  (2015).  Rural By Design – Planning for Town and Country, 2nd Edition.  Chicago, IL.  Planners Press – American 

Planning Association























Acme Township Zoning Ordinance  
P L A N N E D  D E V E L O P M E N T  

1 

P L A N N E D  D E V E L O P M E N T  1 
 2 
 a. The Planned Development (PD) option is intended to allow, with Township approval, 3 

private or public development which is substantially in accord with the goals and 4 
objectives of the Township Master Plan and Future Land Use Map.  5 

 6 
 b. The development allowed under this chapter shall be considered as an optional means 7 

of development only on terms agreeable to the Township.  8 
 9 
 c. Use of the PD option will allow flexibility in the control of land development by 10 

encouraging innovation through an overall development plan to provide variety in design 11 
and layout; to achieve economy and efficiency in the use of land, natural resources, 12 
energy and in the provision of public services and utilities; to encourage useful open 13 
spaces suited to the needs of the parcel in question; and provide proper housing 14 
including workforce housing, employment, service and shopping opportunities suited to 15 
the needs of the residents of the Township. 16 

 17 
 d. It is further intended the Planned development may be used to allow nonresidential uses 18 

of residentially zoned areas; to allow residential uses of nonresidential zoned areas; to 19 
permit densities or lot sizes which are different from the applicable district and to allow 20 
the mixing of land uses that would otherwise not be allowed; provided other community 21 
objectives are met and the resulting development would promote the public health, safety 22 
and welfare, reduce sprawl, and be consistent with the Acme Township Community 23 
Master Plan and Future Land Use Plan Map. 24 

 25 
 e. It is further intended the development will be laid out so the various land uses and building 26 

bulk will relate to one another and to adjoining existing and planned uses in such a way 27 
that they will be compatible, with no material adverse impact of one use on another.  28 

 29 
 f. The number of dwelling units for the PD development shall not exceed the number of 30 

dwelling units allowed under the underlying zoning district, unless there is a density 31 
transfer approved by the Township. 32 

 33 
Definitions 34 
The term "Planned development" (PD) means a specific parcel of land or several contiguous 35 
parcels of land, for which a comprehensive physical plan meeting the requirements of this Section, 36 
establishing functional use areas, density patterns, a fixed network of streets (where necessary) 37 
provisions for public utilities, drainage and other essential services has been approved by the 38 
Township Board which has been, is being, or will be developed under the approved plan. 39 

 40 
Criteria for Qualifications 41 
To qualify for the Planned development option, it must be demonstrated that all the following criteria 42 
will be met: 43 
 44 

a. The properties are zoned R-1, R-2, R-3, A-1, MHN, C, CF, and B-4 Districts. 45 
 46 

 b. Any property that has been granted a special use permit for a Special Open Use under 47 
Section 9.16. 48 

 49 
b. The use of this option shall not be for the sole purpose of avoiding the applicable zoning 50 

requirements. Any permission given for any activity or building or use not normally 51 
allowed shall result in an improvement to the public health, safety and welfare in the area 52 
affected.  53 

 54 

Map requested 



Acme Township Zoning Ordinance  
P L A N N E D  D E V E L O P M E N T  

2 

 c. The PD shall not be used where the same land use objectives can be carried out by the 1 
application of conventional zoning provisions or standards. Problems or constraints 2 
presented by applicable zoning provisions shall be identified in the PD application.  3 

 4 
 d. The Planned development option may be effectuated only when the proposed land use 5 

will not materially add service and facility loads beyond those considered in the Township 6 
Master Plan, and other public agency plans, unless the proponent can prove to the sole 7 
satisfaction of the Township that such added loads will be accommodated or mitigated 8 
by the proponent as part of the Planned development. 9 

 10 
 e. The PD shall not be allowed solely as a means of increasing density or as a substitute 11 

for a variance request; such objectives should be pursued through the normal zoning 12 
process by seeking a zoning change or variance. 13 

 14 
 f. The Planned development must meet, as a minimum, five (5) of the following objectives 15 

of the Township:  16 
 17 
 (1) To permanently preserve open space or natural features because of their 18 

exceptional characteristics or because they can provide a permanent transition 19 
or buffer between land uses.  20 

 21 
 (2) To permanently establish land use patterns which are compatible or which will 22 

protect existing or planned uses.  23 
 24 
 (3) To accept dedication or set aside open space areas in perpetuity.  25 
 26 
 (4) To provide alternative uses for parcels which can provide transition buffers to 27 

residential areas.  28 
 29 
 (5) To promote the goals and objectives of the Township Master Plan.  30 
 31 
 (6) To foster the aesthetic appearance of the Township through quality building 32 

design and site development, provide trees and landscaping beyond minimum 33 
requirements; the preservation of unique and/or historic sites or structures; and 34 
the provision of open space or other desirable features of a site beyond minimum 35 
requirements.  36 

 37 
 (7) To bring about redevelopment of sites where an orderly change of use or 38 

requirements is determined to be desirable.  39 
 40 
 (8) To promote the goals and objectives of the Acme Township Placemaking Plan 41 

and the US-31 and M-72 Business District zoning. 42 
 43 
 (9) To promote sustainable development especially on parcels with active farmland 44 

and orchards as defined by MCL 324.36201 (h). 45 
 46 
  47 



Acme Township Zoning Ordinance  
P L A N N E D  D E V E L O P M E N T  

3 

 1 
Uses Permitted  2 
 3 
 a. A land use plan shall be proposed for the area to be included within the PD. The land 4 

use plan shall be defined by the zoning ordinance districts that are most applicable to 5 
the various land use areas of the PD.  6 

 7 
 b. Uses permitted and uses permitted subject to special approval in this Ordinance may be 8 

allowed within the districts identified on the PD plan, except that some uses may be 9 
specifically prohibited from districts designated on the PD plan. Alternatively, the 10 
Township may allow uses not permitted in the district if specifically noted on the PD plan. 11 
Conditions applicable to uses permitted subject to special approval shall be used as 12 
guidelines for design and layout but may be varied by the Planning Commission provided 13 
such conditions are indicated on the PD plan.  14 

 15 
Height, Bulk, Density and Area Standards 16 
The standards about height, bulk, density, and setbacks of each district shall be applicable within 17 
each district area designated on the plan except as specifically modified and noted on the PD plan.  18 
 19 
Density Transfer 20 
Acme Township encourages flexibility in the location and layout of development, within the overall 21 
density standards of this Ordinance. The Township therefore will permit residential density to be 22 
transferred from one parcel (the "sending parcel") to another (the "receiving parcel"), as provided 23 
below. For purposes of this Section, all sending parcel(s) and receiving parcel(s) shall be 24 
considered together as one planned development parcel.  25 
 26 
 a. All density transfers require Special Use Approval from the Township Board, upon 27 

recommendation from the Planning Commission as part of a PD application. A Special 28 
Use Permit application for a density transfer shall be signed by the owners (or their 29 
authorized representatives) of the sending and receiving parcels. The Special Use 30 
Permit application shall show a proposed development plan for the receiving parcel 31 
(subdivision and/or Site Plan) as well as density calculations for both the sending and 32 
receiving parcels. In reviewing an application for density transfer, the Township shall first 33 
determine the number of allowable residential dwelling units permitted on the receiving 34 
parcel including any density bonuses allowed under this Ordinance. The Township shall 35 
then determine the number of residential dwelling units available to transfer from the 36 
sending parcel(s). The Township Board, upon recommendation from the Planning 37 
Commission, may then grant a Special Use Permit allowing the transfer to the receiving 38 
parcel of some or all of the allowable residential dwelling units from the sending parcel(s). 39 
The sending parcel may not contain more than 10% wetlands. 40 

 41 
c. The Township Board, upon recommendation from the Planning Commission shall not 42 

approve any residential density transfer unless it finds that: 43 
 44 

 (1) All requirements for the granting of a Special Use Permit have been satisfied. 45 
 46 
 (2) The addition of the transferred dwelling units to the receiving parcel will not 47 

increase the maximum allowable density by more than 50% and will not 48 
adversely affect the area surrounding the receiving parcel. 49 

 50 
 (3) The density transfer will benefit the Township by protecting developable land 51 

with conservation value on the sending parcel(s). 52 
 53 
 (4) The density transfer will be consistent with the sending and receiving zones 54 

designated on the Township Zoning Map. 55 
 56 



Acme Township Zoning Ordinance  
P L A N N E D  D E V E L O P M E N T  

4 

 (5) The parcel receiving the density transfer will not exceed the land development 1 
build out (buildings, parking, setbacks, open space, etc.) prescribed by the 2 
zoning district of the property unless waived by the Planning Commission and 3 
Board of Trustees. 4 

 5 
 (6) Sending parcel(s) satisfying the requirements this section shall be executed and 6 

recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds, reducing the number of dwelling 7 
units allowed to be constructed on the sending parcel(s) by the number of 8 
dwelling units transferred. This reduction in density shall not prevent the owner 9 
of the sending parcel from developing the remaining allowable dwelling units 10 
under either an open space or conventional development plan, provided that all 11 
open space requirements are satisfied. The land area subject to the land transfer 12 
will remain perpetually in an undeveloped state by means of a conservation 13 
easement, plat dedication, or other legal means that runs with the land, as 14 
prescribed by the zoning ordinance, and approved by the Township. 15 

 16 
Submittal and Request for Qualification 17 
 18 
 a. Any person owning or controlling land in the Township may make application for 19 

consideration of a Planned development.  Such application shall be made by presenting 20 
a request for a preliminary determination to whether a parcel qualifies for the PD option. 21 

 22 
 b. A request shall be submitted to the Township. The submission shall include the 23 

information required below.  24 
 25 
 c. Based on the documentation presented, the Planning Commission shall make a 26 

preliminary determination about whether a parcel qualifies for the PD option under the 27 
Criteria for Qualification. The submittal must include: 28 

 29 
 (1) Proof the criteria set forth in the Criteria for Qualification section above, are or 30 

will be met.  31 
 32 
 (2) A schematic land use plan containing enough detail to explain the role of open 33 

space; location of land use areas, streets providing access to the site, pedestrian 34 
and vehicular circulation within the site; dwelling unit density and types; and 35 
buildings or floor areas contemplated, as applicable.  36 

 37 
 (3) A plan to protect natural features or preservation of open space or greenbelts.  38 
 39 
 (4) The Planning Commission shall review the applicant’s request for qualification.  40 

If approved, the applicant may then continue to prepare a PD Plan on which a 41 
final determination will be determined. 42 

 43 
Submittal of the PD Plan and Application Materials 44 
The application, reports, and drawings shall be filed in paper and digital format.  All drawings shall 45 
be provided to the Township in the most recent release of AutoCad.  Other graphics and exhibits, 46 
text and tabular information shall be provided in Adobe Acrobat “pdf” format.  All digital submittals 47 
shall be provided to the Township on CD disc format. 48 
 49 
 a. Submittal of Proposed PD Plan. An application shall be made to the Township for review 50 

and recommendation by the Planning Commission of the following: 51 
 52 

 (1) A boundary survey of the exact acreage prepared by a registered land surveyor 53 
or civil engineer (scale not smaller than one inch equals one hundred (100) feet 54 
or less if approved by the Township. 55 

 56 

Strike “in the 
most recent 
release of 
AutoCad”.   
 
Insert “digitally 
in a format 
requested by 
the Township” 



Acme Township Zoning Ordinance  
P L A N N E D  D E V E L O P M E N T  

5 

 (2) A topographic map of the entire area at a contour interval of not more than two 1 
feet. This map shall show all major stands of trees, bodies of water, wetlands 2 
and unbuildable areas (scale: not smaller than one inch equals one hundred 3 
(100) feet) or less if approved by the Township. 4 

 5 
 (3) A proposed development plan showing the following at a scale no smaller than 6 

one-inch equals one hundred (100) feet or less if approved by the Township, 7 
including, but not limited to the following: 8 

 9 
 (a) Land use areas represented by the zoning districts listed as A-1, R-1, R-10 

2, R-3, B1S, B-2, B-3, and B-4 of this Ordinance. 11 
 12 

 (b) Vehicular circulation including major drives and location of vehicular 13 
access including cross sections of public streets or private places. 14 

 15 
 ( c) Transition treatment, including minimum building setbacks to land 16 

adjoining the PD and between different land use areas within the PD.  17 
 18 
 (d) The general location of nonresidential buildings and parking areas, 19 

estimated floor areas, building coverage and number of stories or height.  20 
 21 
 (e) The general location of residential unit types and densities and lot sizes 22 

by area.  23 
 24 
 (f) Location of all wetlands, water and watercourses, proposed water 25 

detention areas and depth to groundwater. 26 
 27 
 (g) The boundaries of open space areas that are to be preserved or 28 

reserved and an indication of the proposed ownership.  29 
 30 
 (h) A schematic landscape treatment plan for open space areas, streets and 31 

border/transition areas to adjoining properties.  32 
 33 
 (i) A preliminary grading plan, showing the extent of grading and 34 

delineating any areas, which are not to be graded or disturbed. 35 
 36 
 (j) A public or private water distribution, storm and sanitary sewer plan.  37 
 38 
 (k) A written statement explaining in detail the full intent of the applicant, 39 

showing dwelling units types or uses contemplated and resultant 40 
population, floor area, parking and supporting documentation, including 41 
the intended schedule of development.  42 

 43 
 (4) A market study, traffic impact study, and /or environmental impact assessment, 44 

if requested by the Planning Commission or Board of Trustees. 45 
 46 
 (5) A pattern book or design guidelines manual if requested by the Planning 47 

Commission or Board of Trustees. 48 
 49 
 50 
 51 
 52 
 53 
 54 
Preliminary Approval of Planned development 55 
 56 



Acme Township Zoning Ordinance  
P L A N N E D  D E V E L O P M E N T  

6 

 (1) Planning Commission Review of Proposed PD Plan:  1 
 2 

 (a) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the PD plan 3 
and shall give notice as provided in Section 8.1.2 (3).  4 

 5 
 (b) After the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall report its 6 

findings and recommendation to the Board. The Planning Commission 7 
shall review the proposed PD plan and make a determination about the 8 
proposal's qualification for the PD option and for adherence to the 9 
following objectives and requirements:  10 

 11 
 1. The proposed PD adheres to the conditions for qualification of 12 

the PD option and promotes the land use goals and objectives 13 
of the Township.  14 

 15 
 2. All applicable provisions of this Chapter shall be met. If any 16 

provision of this Chapter shall be in conflict with the provisions 17 
of any other section of this chapter, the provisions of this Section 18 
shall apply to the lands embraced within a PD area.  19 

 20 
 3. There will be at the time of development, an acceptable means 21 

of disposing of sanitary sewage and of supplying the 22 
development with water and the road network, storm water 23 
drainage system, and other public infrastructure and services 24 
are satisfactory.  25 

 26 
Final Approval of Planned development 27 
 28 
 a. On receiving the report and recommendation of the Planning Commission, and after a 29 

public hearing, the Board shall review all findings. If the Board shall decide to grant the 30 
application, it shall direct the Township attorney to prepare a contract setting forth the 31 
conditions on which such approval is based. Once the contract is prepared it shall be 32 
signed by the Township and the applicant.  33 

 34 
 b. The agreement shall become effective on execution after its approval. The agreement 35 

shall be recorded at the Grand Traverse County Register of Deeds office. 36 
 37 
 c. Once an area has been included with a plan for PD and the Board has approved such 38 

plan, no development may take place in such area nor may any use of it be made except 39 
under such plan or under a Board-approved amendment, unless the plan is terminated.  40 

 41 
 d. An approved plan may be terminated by the applicant or the applicant's successors or 42 

assigns, before any development within the area involved, by filing with the Township 43 
and recording in the County records an affidavit so stating. The approval of the plan shall 44 
terminate on such recording.  45 

 46 
 e. No approved plan shall be terminated after development begins except with the approval 47 

of the Board and of all parties in interest in the land.  48 
 49 
 f. Within one year following approval of the PD contract by the Board, final plats or site 50 

plans for an area embraced within the PD must be filed as provided. If such plats or plans 51 
have not been filed within the one-year period, the right to develop under the approved 52 
plan may be terminated by the Township.  53 

 54 
Submission of Final Plat, Site Plans; Schedule for Completion of PD  55 
 56 



Acme Township Zoning Ordinance  
P L A N N E D  D E V E L O P M E N T  

7 

Before any permits are issued for the PD, final plats or site plans and open space plans for a project 1 
area shall be submitted to the Township for review and approval by the Planning Commission, and 2 
where applicable the Township Board, of the following:  3 
 4 
 a. Review and approval of site plans shall comply with Article VIII as well as this Section 5 

except as otherwise modified in the approved plan.  Review and approval of plats shall 6 
comply with Section 5.7 of Article V of the Township Ordinance as well as the 7 
requirements of this Section.  8 

 9 
 b. Before approving of any final plat or plan, the Planning Commission shall decide that:  10 
 11 
 (1) All portions of the project area shown on the approved plan for the PD for use 12 

by the public or the residents of lands within the PD have been committed to 13 
such uses under the PD contract;  14 

 15 
 (2) The final plats or site plans are in conformity with the approved contract and plan 16 

for the PD; 17 
 18 
 (3) Provisions have been made under the PD contract to provide for the financing 19 

of any improvements shown on the project area plan for open spaces and 20 
common areas which are to be provided by the applicant and that maintenance 21 
of such improvements is assured under the PD contract.  22 

 23 
 (4) If development of approved final plats or site plans is not substantially completed 24 

in three years after approval, further final submittals under the PD shall stop until 25 
the part in question is completed or cause can be shown for not completing 26 
same.  27 

 28 
 c. The applicant shall be required, as the planned development is built, to provide the 29 

Township with “as built” drawings in both paper and digital format. 30 
 31 
Fees 32 
Fees for review of PD plans under this Section shall be established by resolution of the Township 33 
Board.  34 

 35 
Interpretation of Approval  36 
Approval of a PD under this Section shall be considered an optional method of development and 37 
improvement of property subject to the mutual agreement of the Township and the applicant.  38 
 39 
Amendments to PD Plan 40 
Proposed amendments or changes to an approved PD plan shall be presented to the Planning 41 
Commission. The Planning Commission shall decide whether the proposed modification is of such 42 
minor nature as not to violate the area and density requirements or to affect the overall character 43 
of the plan, and in such event may approve or deny the proposed amendment. If the Planning 44 
Commission decides the proposed amendment is material in nature, the Planning Commission and 45 
Township Board shall review the amendment under the provisions and procedures of this Chapter 46 
as they relate to final approval of the Planned development.  47 
 48 
 49 
 50 

Fees need to 
be established 

Need to verify 
if Article VIII 
and Section 
5.7 of Article V 
are the right 
sections to 
point to.



L
a

k
e

M
i

c
h

i
g

a
n

Petob
ego   P

ond

E A S T   B A Y      T O W N S H I P

W
 H

 I 
T
 E

 W
 A

 T
 E

 R
  

 T
 O

 W
 N

 S
 H

 I 
P

B
A

T
E
S
  

R
D

BUNKER HILL  RD

SA
Y

LE
R

  
R

D

LA
U

T
N

E
R

  
R

D

YUBA  RD

ANGELL  RD

BRACKETT  RD

A
R

N
O

LD
  

R
D

B
E
N

N
E
T
T
  

R
D

FI
V
E 

M
IL
E 

 R
D

W
H

IT
E
FO

R
D

  
R

D

DOCK  RD
HAWLEY  RDD

E
E
P
W

A
T
E
R
 P

O
IN

T
  R

D

CRISP  RD

KESNER  RD

TOWNLINE  RD

B
A

T
E
S
  

R
D

PUD Zoning
ACME TOWNSHIP

Data Source: Acme Township

0 0.5 1

Miles

Regulated Zoning Districts:

(/////////31

¥d

M72

Includes B-3, CS, SFN,
R-1MH, B-1S, B-2

PUD - Not Allowed

Includes R-1, R-2, R-3,
A-1, MHN, C, CF, B-4

PUD - Allowed

(/////////31

(/////////31



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Site Plan Review 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350 | Fax: (231) 938-1510 | www.acmetownship.org 

 
Date:  12.07.2015 
 
From: Shawn Winter, Zoning Administrator 
To:  Karly Wentzloff, Chairperson  
 ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
 6042 Acme Road 

Williamsburg, MI 49690 
 
Project: LochenHeath Golf Club Cottage 
 4465 Heath Dr, Williamsburg, MI 49690 
 
Request: Site Plan Review, Special Use Permit Minor Amendment 2015-04 
 
SECTION 1: Background  
 
General Description - 

Converting an existing residential building that was formerly used as an 
administration/sales office into a golf course cottage for members and their guests.  
The project will include a second-story addition above an attached garage, two 
window dormer additions, a brick patio, and interior work to convert the existing 
structure to a six bedroom cottage. The location of the property is illustrated below:  

 

 
 
 

http://www.acmetownship.org/


 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Site Plan Review 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350 | Fax: (231) 938-1510 | www.acmetownship.org 

Applicant -  James Maitland, LochenVest, LLC 
7951 Turnberry Circle, Williamsburg, MI 49690 

 
Owner -  LochenVest, LLC dba LochenHeath Golf Club 

7951 Turnberry Circle, Williamsburg, MI 49690 
 
Engineers -  Gourdie-Fraser (Site Plan) 
  123 W Front St, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 
  Grand Bay Building and Remodeling (Building Plan) 
  6433 S West Bayshore Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 
Property -  LochenHeath Golf Club 
  4465 Heath Dr, Williamsburg, MI 49690 (subject location) 

232 acres  
  28-01-223-001-04 
 
Zoning - Subject Property: A-1 Agricultural     
  Neighboring   North:  R-2 One-Family Urban Residential  
  Properties:  South: A-1 Agricultural 
     East: A-1 Agricultural 
     West: R-2 One-Family Urban Residential 
 
Project History (permits and approvals related to the golf course development) 
   

98-10P Planned Unit Development (PUD) Special Use Permit (SUP) 
 18 hole golf course and 88 homes on 270 acres 

 
99-12P – Amendment to 98-10P 
 11,941 sq. ft. Clubhouse, two restroom facilities, a pump house, a 

turn grill/restroom facility, bus/mailbox shelter 
 
2005-05P – Amendment to 98-10P  
 Relocation of Hole #6 

 
2007-03P – Minor Amendment 
 Change layout of Holes #11 and #12 

 
SECTION 2: Submitted Materials 
 
1. Drawings (one set of 24” x 36” prints, eleven sets of 11” x 17” prints): 

 Sheet 1 of 5: overall site plan 

 Sheet 2 of 5: left and right elevations 

 Sheet 3 of 5: rear and front elevations 

 Sheet 4 of 5: remodeled main floor plan 

 Sheet 5 of 5: additional floor plans 

http://www.acmetownship.org/


 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Site Plan Review 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350 | Fax: (231) 938-1510 | www.acmetownship.org 

2. Additional application materials submitted: 

 Special Use Permit/Site Plan Review application and fee 

 Escrow Policy acknowledgement and fee 

 Project narrative  

 Owner Authorization letter 

 List of existing clubs/courses with different lodging options throughout Michigan 
 
 
SECTION 3: Zoning Ordinance Compliance 
 
9.13 GOLF COURSES AND COUNTRY CLUBS 
  
 9.13.1 REQUIREMENTS: 

Golf courses and country clubs are allowed in designated Zoning Districts by 
special use permit, subject to the following requirements: 

 
a. The site area shall be 50 acres or more and shall have its main ingress and 

egress from a major thoroughfare. 
(SATISFIED: existing golf course and amenities on 232.86 acre parcel, 
approved originally through PUD/SUP 98-10P) 
 

b. All structures and off-street parking areas shall not be less than 200 feet from 
any abutting property in the Residential Zoning Districts. 
(SATISFIED: nearest Residential Zoning District approximately 3,000 ft to 
the west-southwest) 
 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is to be provided, said pool shall be located at 
least 100 feet from abutting property in the Residential Zoning Districts and 
shall be enclosed with a protective fence six feet in height, with an entry limited 
by means of a controlled gate. 
(NOT APPLICABLE: no swimming pool on site or proposed) 

 
 
Agency Reviews 
 

1. GT County Health Dept. (well/septic) – not applicable, private system 
 

2. GT County Dept. of Public Works (sewer) – not applicable, private system, future 
benefit established 
 

3. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control – no permit needed, determination form 
attached 
 

4. GT Metro Emergency Services Authority – approved to move forward, email 
correspondence attached 
 

http://www.acmetownship.org/


 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Site Plan Review 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350 | Fax: (231) 938-1510 | www.acmetownship.org 

5. GT County Sheriff’s Dept. – not applicable 
 

6. GT County Road Commission  – not applicable, no changes to curb cut/traffic 
generation  
 

7. MDOT – not applicable, no changes to curb cut (entrance off internal road) or 
increased traffic generation 
 

8. MDEQ – not applicable, existing structure with no wetlands in vicinity 
 

9. Storm Water Review – not applicable, internal system utilizing underground drain 
pipes and retention ponds previously reviewed, not adding additional impervious 
surface or storm water run-off to system  

 
 

Standards for Site Plan Review: 

Item Standard Finding 

1. 

That the applicant may legally apply for site 
plan review. 

The Applicant has been authorized to apply 
by the Chairman of the Board for the 
LochenVest LLC dba LochenHeath Golf 
Club 

2. 
That all required information has been 
provided. 

Satisfied 
 

3. 

That the proposed development conforms 
to all regulations of the zoning district in 
which it is located and all other applicable 
standards and requirements of this 
ordinance, including but not limited to all 
supplementary regulations. 

The proposed use conforms to development 
approved through a previous PUD/SUP and 
§9.13 “Golf Course and Country Clubs” 
 

4. 

That the plan meets the requirements of 
Acme Township for fire and police 
protection, water supply, sewage disposal 
or treatment, storm, drainage, and other 
public facilities and services. 

Satisfied 
 

5. 

That the plan meets the standards of other 
governmental agencies where applicable, 
and that the approval of these agencies 
has been obtained or is assured. 

Satisfied 
 

6. 

That natural resources will be preserved to 
a maximum feasible extent, and that areas 
to be left undisturbed during construction 
shall be so indicated on the site plan and at 
the site per se. 

Satisfied – the building and infrastructure 
are already existing 

7. 
That the proposed development property 
respects floodways and flood plains on or 
in the vicinity of the subject property. 

Satisfied – the proposed use will not take 
place in a floodway/plain 

http://www.acmetownship.org/


 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Site Plan Review 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350 | Fax: (231) 938-1510 | www.acmetownship.org 

8. 

That the soil conditions are suitable for 
excavation and site preparation, and that 
organic, wet, or other soils which are not 
suitable for development will either be 
undisturbed, or modified in an acceptable 
manner. 

Satisfied – no SESC permit is needed.  
Very little ground disturbance: 20’ x 20’ brick 
patio, and converting former gravel 
driveway to grass 

9. 

That the proposed development will not 
cause soil erosion or sedimentation 
problems. 

Satisifed – no SESC permit is needed.  
Very little ground disturbance: 20’ x 20’ brick 
patio, and converting former gravel 
driveway to grass 

10. 

That the drainage plan for the proposed 
development is adequate to handle 
anticipated storm water runoff, and will not 
cause undue runoff onto neighboring 
property or overloading of water courses in 
the area. 

Satisfied – the storm water system has 
been engineered and constructed as part of 
the LochenHeath development project. 
Snow is stored on site around the parking 
lot, or moved to a central location   

11. 

That grading or filling will not destroy the 
character of the property or the surrounding 
area, and will not adversely affect the 
adjacent or neighboring properties. 

Satisfied – no grading or filling is proposed. 

12. 

That structures, landscaping, landfills or 
other land uses will not disrupt air 
drainage systems necessary for 
agricultural uses. 

Satisfied – not located in an airshed 

13. 

That phases of development are in a logical 
sequence, so that any one phase will not 
depend upon a subsequent phase for 
adequate access, public utility services, 
drainage, or erosion control. 

Satisfied – no phases are proposed 

14. 

That the plan provides for the proper 
expansion of existing facilities such as 
public streets, drainage systems, and water 
and sewage facilities. 

Satisfied – existing private water and 
sanitary sewer in place.  Benefit established 
for future sanitary sewer hook-up.  Storm 
water drainage system in place.  Private 
street network already established. 

15. 

That landscaping, fences or walls may be 
required when appropriate to meet the 
objectives of this Ordinance. 

Satisfied – property previously landscaped.  
Applicant has agreed to provide additional 
landscape screening between house and 
US-31 utilizing native species (not reflected 
in site plan drawings) 

16. 
That parking layout will not adversely affect 
the flow of traffic within the site, or to and 
from the adjacent streets. 

Satisfied* – parking lot and connection to 
interior street network already existing. 

17. 

That vehicular and pedestrian traffic within 
the site, and in relation to streets and 
sidewalks serving the site, shall be safe 

and convenient. 

Satisfied – parking lot does not allow 
through traffic.  Existing golf cart paths will 
not be effected by the proposed use.  

http://www.acmetownship.org/


 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Site Plan Review 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350 | Fax: (231) 938-1510 | www.acmetownship.org 

18. 

That outdoor storage of garbage and 
refuse is contained, screened from view, 
and located so as not be a nuisance to the 
subject property or neighboring properties. 

Satisfied – no dumpster at the cottage 
location.  Refuse will be picked up and 
contained at a central location on the 
property. 

19. 

That the proposed site is in accord with the 
spirit and purpose of this Ordinance, and 
not inconsistent with, or contrary to, the 
objectives sought to be accomplished by 
this Ordinance and the principles of sound 
planning. 

Satisfied 

* Parking requirements were calculated using §7.5.3(c)(11) “Motels, hotels, tourist homes”.  The maximum 
allowed parking for this use is one space per room, plus one space per 400 ft2 of floor area.  Based on six rooms 
and 3,000 ft2 the maximum allowed spaces is 14, and the site plan shows 15 total, one of which is a barrier-free 
space.  It is recommended to accept the 15 spaces since the parking lot is previously existing, curbed and part 
of the storm water drainage system, and keeping in mind that many of the guests will also be driving and parking 
golf carts at the cottage.  

 
 
SECTION 4: Summary 
 
Summary of Review: 
 
The proposed PUD/SUP Minor Amendment would allow the conversion of an original two-story 
single-family home into a golf course cottage for members and their guests at LochenHeath Golf 
Club.  The subject property was part of the original PUD application and was at one time used 
as an administration and sales office.  Currently the building sits vacant.   
 
Converting the property into a golf course cottage will create very little land disturbance.  The 
attached garage was previously remodeled into interior living space.  Exterior improvements 
include two dormers, one each on the north and south sides, and a second-story addition over 
the former garage which will another 120 ft2 of living space.  The end result will be a 3,000 ft2 
golf course cottage consisting of 6 bedrooms, 6 ½ bathrooms (private bathroom in each room), 
a residential-grade kitchen, and a 20’ x 20’ brick patio addition approximately 25 feet north of 
the building’s northeast corner.  A former gravel driveway off of US-31 will be replaced with 
grass and the applicant has agreed to provide additional native plant/tree screening in the 
location of the driveway (see recommendations in Suggested Motion below).  Exterior lighting 
will be of residential nature and will consist of porch lighting with cut-off shielding (§7.8.3(b)(1)) 
and parking lot lighting equipped with motion sensors (7.8.3(b)(3)).      
 
The cottage will be able to sleep a maximum of 16 people, however, a more typical number 
would be around eight primarily on weekends between April and October.  The majority of the 
meals will be prepared and consumed at the golf course’s restaurant, with existing staff 
managing the check-in and registration procedures.  Since most of the guests will be golf course 
patrons who will be given golf carts for their stay the increase in traffic generation will be minimal.  
There will be no new driveway entrances or signage along US-31.   
 
Zoning Ordinance §9.13 “Golf Courses and Country Clubs” is rather thin and not very 
prescriptive.  The conditions that are presented have been met by the LochenHeath Golf course 
through previous approvals, and the use of the existing building for a golf course cottage meets 

http://www.acmetownship.org/


 

Page 7 of 7 
 

Site Plan Review 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350 | Fax: (231) 938-1510 | www.acmetownship.org 

the definition of a structure.  The use that is proposed in this Minor Amendment is fitting with the 
nature of golf courses and the amenities they provide.  Specifically, cottages or lodging options 
are becoming increasingly popular in the industry as is indicated in the attached list of 
courses/clubs in the region that provide this service. The cottage will be a low-intensity use 
designed primarily to accommodate guests that will patronizing the golf club.  Furthermore, the 
proposed use activates an existing vacant structure that fits this purpose with essentially no land 
disturbance or impact to neighboring property owners.  Based on the facts presented in this Site 
Plan Review it is recommend that the Planning Commission approve SUP 2015-04 Minor 
Amendment to PUD/SUP 98-10P with the conditions provided below in the suggested motion.     
 

Suggested Motion: 
 
Motion to approve the PUD/SUP 2015-04 Minor Amendment with Site Plan Review subject 
to completion, submission and approval by the Zoning Administrator/Planner of the 
following: 
 

1. Updated site plan to include:  
a. Removal of dumpster  
b. The location and species of two trees (canopy or evergreen) and 10 small 

shrubs along the US-31 right-of-way between the existing beech trees where 
the driveway is to be removed (§7.5.6(e)) 

c. Correction of the compass arrow direction 
d. Stamped/sealed by engineer 
e. Date of final revision 

2. The final approved set of site plan drawings to be signed by the Chairperson of the 
Acme Township Planning Commission and the Applicant or their designated 
representative.  

http://www.acmetownship.org/


























1

Shawn Winter

From: Brian Belcher <bbelcher@gtmetrofire.org>
Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2015 9:27 AM
To: Shawn Winter; jmaitland11@hotmail.com
Subject: Lochenheath B & B

Shawn and Jim, 
 
I’ve looked at what Jim submitted and we do not need to complete a site plan review for this project and the project 
may proceed with the township approval process.  Jim, once you are applying for construction permits you will need to 
provide architectural drawings and apply for fire code building review with Metro Fire.  Any questions don’t hesitate to 
ask. 
 

Brian Belcher, CFPS 
Assistant Chief/ Fire Marshal 
Grand Traverse Metro Fire Department 
 

Smoke Alarms Save Lives, Check Yours Today! 
 

Confidentiality Statement: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is intended only for the use of the 
recipient(s) and may contain privileged and confidential information, including information that is protected 
under the HIPAA privacy rules. Any unauthorized review, disclosure, copying, distribution, or use is prohibited. 
If you have received this e-mail by mistake, please notify us immediately by reply e-mail and destroy all copies 
of the original message.  



 
p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Date:  12.15.2015 
 

From: John Iacoangeli 
To:  Karly Wentzloff, Chairperson  
 ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
 6042 Acme Road 

Traverse City, MI 49690 
 
Project: Gokey Apartments 
 End of Holt Road 
 2015 
 
Request: Site Plan Review – Based on Planning Commission Meeting 12-14-2015 
 
Applicant: Todd Gokey 
 3772 Kennedy Place 
 Williamsburg, MI 49690 
  
Parcel Address: 6142 Golbert Avenue and the end of Holt Road  
 Williamsburg, MI 
 
Parcel Number: 28-01-243-033-00 28-01-234-032-00 28-01-234-030-00 
 28-01-300-040-00 28-01-300-043-01 
 
 
General Description: 
The Applicant is proposing to construct 24 townhouse style apartments in two 12-unit 
phases on several parcels accessible at the end of Holt Road and Gilbert Avenue. The total 
acreage of the combined parcels is 2.17 acres.  
 
  



 
p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

 
Zoning Ordinance Compliance 
 
The property is zoned MHN (Mixed Housing Neighborhood) and the proposed use is 
compliant with Section 6.6.4.1 Regulated Uses and Permitted by Right.  As a result, just 
a site plan review and approval is required.  
 
Agency Reviews 
 

1. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control – letter dated December 10, 2015 from 
Gwendolyn Zagore, Grand Traverse County Soil Erosion Inspector. 

 
2. Grand Traverse County Health Department – Approval for residential well 

provided. (attached) 
 

3. Grand Traverse Metro Emergency Services Authority – Site Plan Review memo 
dated December 14, 2015 
 

4. Stormwater Review – Memo dated December 11, 2015 from Robert Verschaeve 
and Martin Graf; Gosling Czubak. 

 
The subject property does not have frontage on a public right-of-way because it is 
located at the end of two public streets; Holt and Gilbert. As a result, the Build-to-Line 
required in the ordinance is not applicable. All other provisions of the US-31 / M-72 
Business District are applicable. 
 
Standards for Site Plan Review 
Inconsistencies with the Standards are in bold in the Findings. 

 
Standards for Site Plan Review 

Standard Finding 
That the applicant may legally apply for site plan 
review. 

The Applicant is the property owner and has 
obtained written authorization to represent 
David Krause; dated August 18, 2015. 

That all required information has been provided. Site plan information acceptable. 
That the proposed development conforms to all 
regulations of the zoning district in which it is 
located and all other applicable standards and 
requirements of this ordinance, including but 
not limited to all supplementary regulations. 

The proposed use is permitted by right in the 
zoning district.  
 
 

That the plan meets the requirements of Acme 
Township for fire and police protection, water 
supply, sewage disposal or treatment, storm, 
drainage, and other public facilities and services. 

Fire and Grand Traverse County Health 
Department have reviewed plans and 
approved. Agency permits required prior to 
issuance of Land Use Permit by Township. 
 
 
 



 
p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Standards for Site Plan Review 
Standard Finding 

That the plan meets the standards of other 
governmental agencies where applicable, and 
that the approval of these agencies has been 
obtained or is assured. 

Fire and Grand Traverse County Health 
Department have reviewed plans and 
approved. Agency permits required prior to 
issuance of Land Use Permit by Township. 
 

That natural resources will be preserved to a 
maximum feasible extent, and that areas to be 
left undisturbed during construction shall be so 
indicated on the site plan and at the site per se. 

The northern portion of the subject property 
abuts Acme Creek. The applicant is 
proposing 2 rows of silt fencing and straw 
bales as protective measures. 
 

That the proposed development property 
respects floodways and flood plains on or in the 
vicinity of the subject property. 

Not applicable. 

That the soil conditions are suitable for 
excavation and site preparation, and that 
organic, wet, or other soils which are not 
suitable for development will either be 
undisturbed, or modified in an acceptable 
manner. 

Plans do not indicated any problematic soils.  
Development adjacent to the subject site 
would indicated acceptable soil suitability. 

That the proposed development will not cause 
soil erosion or sedimentation problems. 

The review cannot guarantee this 
requirement because soli erosion and 
sedimentation control occurs throughout 
the constriction process. 

That the drainage plan for the proposed 
development is adequate to handle anticipated 
storm water runoff, and will not cause undue 
runoff onto neighboring property or 
overloading of water courses in the area. 

Review attached from Township Engineer. 

That grading or filling will not destroy the 
character of the property or the surrounding 
area, and will not adversely affect the adjacent 
or neighboring properties. 

The current site is fairly flat accept portions 
that are adjacent to and within the 50 foot 
setback.   

That structures, landscaping, landfills or other 
land uses will not disrupt air drainage systems 
necessary for agricultural uses. 

The subject property is not within a defined 
airshed noted in the 2013 Master Plan. 

That phases of development are in a logical 
sequence, so that any one phase will not depend 
upon a subsequent phase for adequate access, 
public utility services, drainage, or erosion 
control. 

The phasing proposed are independent of 
each other. 

That the plan provides for the proper expansion 
of existing facilities such as public streets, 
drainage systems, and water and sewage 
facilities. 

The project will be served by a well and 
connected to the public sanitary sewer 
system at the end of Holt Road for Phase 1 
and Gilbert Avenue for Phase 2. 
 
 
 



 
p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Standards for Site Plan Review 
Standard Finding 

That landscaping, fences or walls may be 
required when appropriate to meet the 
objectives of this Ordinance. 

Applicant to submit final landscaping plans 
that are prepared by Landscape Architect 
and that meet the Native Plant ordinance. 

That parking layout will not adversely affect the 
flow of traffic within the site, or to and from the 
adjacent streets. 

No impact. 

That vehicular and pedestrian traffic within the 
site, and in relation to streets and sidewalks 
serving the site, shall be safe and convenient. 
 

Sidewalks connect each of the proposed 
tonwnhomes and connect with the public 
right-of-ways on Holt Road and Gilbert 
Avenue with full build out. 

That outdoor storage of garbage and refuse is 
contained, screened from view, and located so 
as not be a nuisance to the subject property or 
neighboring properties. 

Provided. 

That the proposed site is in accord with the spirit 
and purpose of this Ordinance, and not 
inconsistent with, or contrary to, the objectives 
sought to be accomplished by this Ordinance 
and the principles of sound planning. 

The proposed use meets the intent of the 
 MHN zoning district. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve the site plan submitted by Todd Gokey for the construction of 24 townhome 
apartments to be built in two phases located on 2.17 acres with the following 
stipulations: 
 

1) The approved site plan consists of Sheets 1 through 5 with a date to be written 
in the lower right corner under the sheet title (i.e. C1.1) by the Chairperson of 
the Planning Commission. 

(a) Sheet C0 – General Information Plan 
(b) Sheet C1.1 – Demolition Plan 
(c) Sheet C1.2 – Site and Dimension Plan 
(d) Sheet C1.3 – Utility Plan 
(e) Sheet C1.4 – Grading, Drainage & Soil Erosion Plan 

2) The approved site plan package be signed by the Chairperson of the Planning 
Commission and the Applicant, or their representative. 

3) The southern edge of the parking lot will not include a curb and shall be used 
for snow storage. 

4) All recommendations from the Township Engineer regarding stormwater 
management shall be instituted and comply with Section 6.6.6.5. 

5) Parking lot light poles shall not exceed the height of the roof (not the peak or 
main entrance structure) and shall be in conformance with Section 6.6.6.3. 

6) Because the development is residential-only and not a mixed use project the 
height of first floor does not need to comply with Section 6.6.5.2 – First Floor 
Ceiling Height. 



 
p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

7) A final landscape plan that complies with Section 7.5.6 Landscaping shall be 
submitted and approved by Beckett & Raeder prior to issuance of a Land Use 
Permit. 

8) All agency permits must be provided to the Township prior to the issuance of 
the Land Use Permit. 

9) All comments from review agencies are required to be addressed and included 
in final plan. 
 

 
##### 
 



 

Date:  December 7, 2015 
 
From: Tim Knutsen 
To:  John Iacoangeli 
 Beckett & Raeder, Inc, 
 
 
 
Project: Acme Township Site Plan Review – Landscape Plan 
 Proposed Apartment Complex (Gokey) 
 
Remarks: John, 
 
I received Drawings C1.1-C1.4 for the Proposed Apartment Complex/Todd Gokey, dated 12-4-
15. Following are my plan review notes pertaining to Acme Township Landscape Requirements: 
 
Ordinance 
Section  Comments 
 
7.5.4 c.: Off-Street Parking Area Buffering, Landscaping and Screening: 
 
 3.  Treed Islands: 

 a. Tree requirement in treed islands is one tree per ten parking spaces. 
Treed islands in the plan only indicate three trees, but there are 38 
parking spaces. Add one tree to treed islands. 

 b. Provide the required treed islands at the ends of all parking aisles. The 
plan indicates two parking aisles ending in spaces 35 and 38, that have 
no treed islands at the ends. 

  d. Locate, label and quantify the required Snow Storage Area. 
 
7.5.6: Landscaping: 
 
          b. Application: 
 4. Identify sizes of plant materials. 
 5. Identify zoning district classification of adjacent properties. 
 6. Add sizes, root conditions and quantities to Landscape Plant Legend. 
 
          c.  Standards and Criteria 
 1. 
 2. Add notation to plan specifying the standards. 
 3. Provide sizes in Landscape Plant Legend that meet with the stated 

Standards and Criteria. 
 5. Provide Irrigation System Plan, Specifications, or assurance that 

landscape materials will be watered with an automatic sprinkler system. 
 Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 

616 Petoskey Street 
Petoskey, Michigan  49770 
 
231.347.2523 ph 
231.347.2524 fx 
 
www.bria2.com 

 
 
 
 

 



(J)
informed

B R (J)

Beckettsikaeder
Landscape Architecture
Planning & Engineering

d. Landscape Buffers:
1. Landscape buffers at the driveway entrances from Gilbert Ave. and Holt

Rd. do not appear to have the required 20' width from the adjacent
property line.

3. The landscape buffer next to the existing residence on Holt st. does riot
provide the required landscape screen. However, the plan identifies the
buffer area as being wooded. The Township may use its discretion to
determine whether the existing vegetation in this area is sufficient to
serve as a landscape buffer to the adjacent property.

This concludes my review of the Landscape Plan for the proposed project. Please let me know if
there are any questions regarding this review.

Regards,

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.
616 Petoskey Street
Petoskey, Michigan 49770

231.347.2523 ph
231.347.2524 fx

www.bria2.com















First Floor 

(typical) 

(Mechanical 

and storage 

bump out not 

shown) 

Second Floor 

(typical) 





GRAND TRAVERSE METRO FIRE DEPARTMENT 
FIRE PREVENTION BUREAU 

 
 897 Parsons Road ~ Traverse City, MI 49686  

Phone: (231) 947-3000 Fax: (231) 922-4918 ~ Website: www.gtmetrofire.org Email: Info@gtfire.org  
 
 

 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
ID # 5666  M#5942  P#1124                            DATE: 12/14/15 

 

1. 505.1 Address identification. 

New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers, building numbers or 

approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible 

from the street or road fronting the property. These numbers shall contrast with their 

background. Where required by the fire code official, address numbers shall be provided 

in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response. Address numbers shall 

be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters. Numbers shall be a minimum of 4 inches 

(101.6 mm) high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7 mm). Where access is by 

means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed from the public way , a 

monument, pole or other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure. Address 

numbers shall be maintained. 

 

2. 503.3 Fire Lane Marking. 

Where required by the fire code official, approved signs or other approved notices or 

markings that include the words NO PARKING—FIRE LANE shall be provided for fire 

apparatus access roads to identify such roads or prohibit the obstruction thereof. The 

means by which fire lanes are designated shall be maintained in a clean and legible 

condition at all times and be replaced or repaired when necessary to provide adequate 

visibility.   

- Provide “Fire Lane No Parking” signs along the access drive from Holt Rd. and at 

the emergency access gate and roadway to Gilbert Rd. Signs shall be on both sides 

of road, facing the direction of travel and be spaced no more than every 100 feet. 

 

3.  506.1.1 Locks. 

An approved lock shall be installed on gates or similar barriers when required by the fire 

code official. 

- The emergency access gate to Gilbert Rd shall be provided with a Knox brand 

padlock to allow access by fire dept apparatus. 

 

4.  507.1 Required water supply. 

An approved water supply capable of supplying the required fire flow for fire protection 

shall be provided to premises upon which facilities, buildings or portions of buildings are 

hereafter constructed or moved into or within the jurisdiction. 

104.8 Modifications. 

Whenever there are practical difficulties involved in carrying out the provisions of this 

code, the fire code official shall have the authority to grant modifications for individual 

cases, provided the fire code official shall first find that special individual reason makes 

http://www.gtmetrofire.org/
mailto:Info@Gtfire.org


GRAND TRAVERSE METRO FIRE DEPARTMENT 
FIRE PREVENTION BUREAU 

 
 897 Parsons Road ~ Traverse City, MI 49686  

Phone: (231) 947-3000 Fax: (231) 922-4918 ~ Website: www.gtmetrofire.org Email: Info@gtfire.org  
 
 

the strict letter of this code impractical and the modification is in compliance with the 

intent and purpose of this code and that such modification does not lessen health, life and 

fire safety requirements. The details of action granting modifications shall be recorded 

and entered in the files of the department of fire prevention. 

- This building is not served by any township or tribal water supply and cannot 

meet the code requirements for an on –site water supply.  Using section 104.8 stated 

above, the owner is requesting a modification to install a complete NFPA 72 

compliant fire/smoke detection and occupant warning system which will be 

monitored off site 24/7/365 by a UL listed central station.  The request for 

modification is granted and shall be noted as a requirement by any township 

approval documents. 

 

Summary:  This project may proceed with the township approval process.  The 

above noted items shall be complete before occupancy can be granted. 

 
 

http://www.gtmetrofire.org/
mailto:Info@Gtfire.org


1

Shawn Winter

From: Scott Jozwiak <scott@jozwiakconsulting.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 01, 2015 4:22 PM
To: Shawn Winter
Cc: todd gokey
Subject: FW: Gokey project

FYI:  Below is the correspondence back from the fire department regarding the need for monitoring in lieu of a water 
supply. 
 

From: Brian Belcher [mailto:bbelcher@gtmetrofire.org]  
Sent: Tuesday, December 1, 2015 3:58 PM 
To: Scott Jozwiak <scott@jozwiakconsulting.com> 
Subject: Gokey project 
 
Scott, 
 
Per our attorney the project does not need to go to the board of appeals, he states I can approve and “alternative” 
method of fire protection which in this case would be the full detection and alarm system which is monitored off‐site 24 
hours a day by a UL listed central station service.  Any questions let me know. 
 

Brian Belcher, CFPS 
Assistant Chief/ Fire Marshal 
Grand Traverse Metro Fire Department 
 

Smoke Alarms Save Lives, Check Yours Today! 
 

Confidentiality Statement: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is intended only for the use of the 
recipient(s) and may contain privileged and confidential information, including information that is protected 
under the HIPAA privacy rules. Any unauthorized review, disclosure, copying, distribution, or use is prohibited. 
If you have received this e-mail by mistake, please notify us immediately by reply e-mail and destroy all copies 
of the original message.  



         

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
                 SOIL EROSION – SEDIMENTATION CONTROL DEPARTMENT 

2650 LAFRANIER ROAD 
TRAVERSE CITY, MICHIGAN 49686 

(231) 995-6042  
 

December 10, 2015 

 
Jozwiak Consulting 

PO Box 5342  

Traverse City, MI 49696 

 

RE: Preliminary Review for Proposed Apartment Complex Parcel #:01-234-030-00 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

This office has reviewed the submitted plans prepared by Jozwiak Consulting, for the proposed complex located at 6121 

Holt Rd. An on site inspection was completed on December 7, 2015.  

 

According to the Grand Traverse Count Soil Survey, the site consists mostly of Mancelona East Lake loamy sands. There 

are Kalkaska sands paralleling the creek. Both of these types of soils allow for excellent drainage and low erosion 

potential.  

 

Acme Creek runs to the north of the proposed buildings and bends around to the west of  building 2 in Phase II, 50 feet 

from the proposed construction. The site plan indicates two (2) rows of silt fence and a row of straw bales. These will be 

required to assure that no sediment can enter Acme Creek.  

 

The submitted site plan shows that the project will be completed as Phase I and Phase II. This office will require that 

Phase I be stabilized before Phase II begins.  

 

The site plan includes stone drains around each building that are sized to hold back to back 100 year storms and an 

underground storm water storage system that is also designed to hold a 100 year storm. These systems will serve the 

purpose of preventing erosion due to the fact that they will contain storm water run off. 

 

A completed Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control application will need to be filed with our office to begin 

construction. We require a complete set of plans, which depicts the distance to the creek, the actual area of disturbance, 

grading (cut and fill), soil erosion control measures, construction schedule and a maintenance plan. 

 

If the appropriate SESC measures are properly installed and maintained, this office does not object to the proposed 

project.  

 

If you have any questions or concerns regarding this decision please feel free to contact me at 231-995-6042. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Gwendolyn Zagore 

Grand Traverse County Soil Erosion Inspector 

 

Cc: Todd Gokey, Developer            Bruce Remai, Director/Building Official 
       Acme Township Planning 



Page 1

Technical Memo – Storm water Calculation Review

To: John Iacoangeli - Beckett & Raeder, Inc.
Jay Zollinger, Supervisor – Acme Township

From: Robert Verschaeve, P.E / Martin Graf, P.E.

Date: December 11, 2015

RE: Proposed Acme Apartment Complex – 6121 Holt Rd/6142 Gilbert Ave
Stormwater Calculation Review

This review is being provided as requested by Acme Township and
Beckett & Raeder, Inc. and is limited to storm water control for the
referenced project.  Soil erosion and sedimentation control measures are
noted on the plans.  This review does not address any of those measures
and review and/or approval of those measures should come from the
office that would issue a SESC permit.

The plans for the project that were submitted for review were prepared by
Jozwiak Consulting with the issue date of 11/19/15 and revision date of
12/11/15.

The plans show two proposed 7600 sft apartment buildings. It also
includes approximately 24,610 sft of new HMA parking, patio, and
concrete sidewalk.

The storm water runoff for the site is directed to building edge stone
drains and two underground storm systems.  The systems are designed
as infiltration systems as there are no positive drainage outlets from the
systems.  Based on this the systems have been sized for a 100-yr storm
event and evaluated for back-to-back 100-yr storm events with infiltration
considerations as allowed per the storm water control ordinance.

The impervious areas used in the calculations shown on the plans were
checked.  The scaled impervious area is consistent with the design area
noted in the storm water calculations.

The volumes of the underground systems and building edge drains were
also checked.  The calculated volumes are consistent with the design
volumes indicated on the plans and storm water calculations.

No soil infiltration test appears to have been performed at the site. A
design infiltration rate of 15”/hr was used for the building edge drains
and 1”/hr was used for the underground infiltration systems.



Page 2

In reviewing Section 1. Infiltration/Retention Systems of the Acme
Township Storm water Control Ordinance, there is one item that needs to
be addressed as follows:

1. Design Criteria.  This section notes that an infiltration test with a
report as detailed in Appendix 9 must be submitted to justify
proposed design infiltration rates greater than specified in the
ordinance.  No report has been received.  Please submit the
required infiltration report.

In general the storm water controls proposed on the plans appear fairly
typical of what might be seen on similar sites in Grand Traverse County.
It appears that the items noted should be able to be satisfactorily
addressed by the developer’s engineer.  Once the requested items are
provided, it is anticipated the proposed storm water control plan can be
approved.





1

Shawn Winter

From: Scott Jozwiak <scott@jozwiakconsulting.com>
Sent: Friday, December 11, 2015 3:47 PM
To: John Iacoangeli, AICP, PCP L; Shawn Winter
Subject: Fwd: Acme Apartments

 
 
Scott Jozwiak 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Garth Greenan <GGreenan@gtcrc.org> 
Date: December 11, 2015 at 3:35:06 PM EST 
To: Scott Jozwiak <scott@jozwiakconsulting.com> 
Subject: RE: Acme Apartments 

Scott: 
  
The Grand Traverse County Road Commission offer the following in terms of our understanding and 
conceptual review of the proposed apartments in Acme Township: 
  
The apartments are located at the ends of Gilbert Ave. and also Holt Road, each of which have a 66’ 
ROW.  The project will be constructed in two phases, with the east phase being constructed first, off 
Holt Road.   There will be 12 units in each building. 
  
The items of comment and/or concern are: 
  

 Turn around facilities of GTCRC vehicles at the end of the roadways.  Facilities or easements for 

turnarounds will be required. 

 Drainage: no additional offsite runoff will be allowed to be discharged to the ROW unless 

facilities are improved to accommodate the additional flow. 

 Permits from the road commission will be required for any construction within the ROW. 

 Any construction within the ROW must comply with GTCRC standards. 

  
Upon submittal for the Land Develop Review Committee or for Permits, a review will be completed. 
  
Garth 
  
  
Garth Greenan, P.E.                                                            
Traffic Services Supervisor 
Grand Traverse County Road Commission 
1881 LaFranier Road 
Traverse City, MI 49696 
www.gtcrc.org 
  
GTCRC Number:  231‐922‐4848                Direct Number:    231‐922‐4849 ext 205 



2

GTCRC FAX No.:   231‐929‐1836                Mobile Number: 231‐590‐3638  

 
  
  
  
  

From: Scott Jozwiak [mailto:scott@jozwiakconsulting.com]  
Sent: Friday, December 11, 2015 12:21 PM 
To: Garth Greenan <GGreenan@gtcrc.org> 
Subject: Acme Apartments 
  
Hi Garth, 
  
Just checking on the status of your review letter for the Acme Apartment project. 
  
Thanks Garth, 
Scott. 
  
Scott Jozwiak, PE 
Jozwiak Consulting 
p 231.218.1201 | f 866.688.0965 
PO Box 5342, Traverse City, MI  49696 
13300 S W. Bayshore Dr., Traverse City, MI  49684 
scott@jozwiakconsulting.com |  www.jozwiakconsulting.com 
  













project narrative 

    

November 19, 2015 (revised 12-10-15) 
 
RE: Acme Apartment Complex 
 

 Project Overview 

 This submittal is for a two phase apartment complex that in total proposes 24 townhouse style units.  Each 
unit is proposed to be 2 stories tall. 

 Parcel A will be developed first and Parcel B will be developed at a later date depending on demand. 
 

 Parcel Information 

 The total project consists of 2.17 acres.  Parcel A is 1.27 acres, Parcel B is 0.9 acres. 

 Both parcels are bordered by Acme Creek to the north. 

 Parcel A does not consist of any structures or impervious surfaces. 

 Parcel B is a single family home and will remain a single family home by the current owner until such a time 
that the developer wishes to execute the purchase. 

 Zoning 

 Summary 
 The property is zoned MHN (Mixed Housing Neighborhood) 
 Apartments are a permitted use in this district. 

 Setbacks 
 Buildings are set back 50’ from the bank of Acme Creek. 
 Due to the irregular nature of this parcel in proximity to road right-of-way, differentiating between 

front, side and rear yards was very difficult.  After reviewing the relationship with right-of-way 
frontage, we determined the setbacks.  Please re 

 All other parcels lines have 10’ setbacks (side yard). 

 Traffic generation/circulation 
 Traffic generation for this apartment complex is estimated to be 6.63 trips per day per apartment 

unit (Institute of Transportation Engineers) 
 Average Daily Trips = 24x6.63 = 160 
 Traffic is allowed to access M-72 and US-31. 
 Access to Gilbert Drive will be by way of an emergency gate with a Knox box.  Otherwise, resident 

nor thru traffic will be permitted.  Gilbert Drive at this location is only a 33’ wide access easement.  
Additionally, it is “back of the house” for the businesses that front US-31 and therefore is not 
conducive to flow-thru traffic. 

 The sidewalk network within the apartment complex connects to Holt Road and Gilbert Avenue. 

 Parking 
 Ordinance requirement:  1.5 spaces per apartment unit 
 36 spaces are required, 39 spaces are shown. 

 Impervious surface 
 Ordinance allows for up to 60% impervious surface. 
 Current project is at 40%. 

 

 Utilities 

 Sewer 



Page 2 

 Municipal sewer service will service this development. 

 Sewer is available on both Holt and Gilbert Avenue.  According to as-built information, a sewer lead 
exists for parcel B.  Due to phasing and the length of run, a second lead will be installed from Holt Road. 

 Inspection manholes will be installed on both leads. 

 Water 

 Municipal water is not available to this parcel. 

 Development will be serviced by wells. 

 Phase 1 will utilize a new Type III well.  A Type III can service up to 13 connections. 

 Upon moving forward with Phase 2, the developer will either: 
 convert the Type III well to a Type 1 (isolation requirements to potential contamination areas 

increase) 
 install a second Type III well and provide documentation that separates the two buildings into two 

distinct operating entities. 
 seek municipal water source. 

 Stormwater Management 

 Stormwater is controlled by way of underground collection/infiltration systems and stone drains along 
the perimeter of the structures. 

 100 year frequency Design storm was used for calculations. 
 

 Soil Erosion Control 

 Due to the sensitivity to work in proximity to Acme Creek, additional measures are being implemented 
to increase the level of protection along the creek.  Two rows of silt fence are proposed. 

 The soils being coarse sand provide for minimal overland flow due to the high infiltration rates 
associated with these types of soils. 

 Fire Protection 

 Since a suitable fire protection water supply is unavailable to the site at this time, an early detection 
system will be installed which will have off-site monitoring, 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. 

 At such a time that a reliable water supply becomes available to the site, the above mentioned 
monitoring would be reduced or brought into current compliance with the International Fire Code.  

 Building Information 

 Overview 

 Materials 

 Height 

 Lighting 
 

 Project Phasing 

 The project is planned to consist of two phases. 

 Phase 1 will be constructed in the spring of 2016. 

 Phase 2 will be constructed based on market demand. 



If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 hours of 
the meeting at 938-1350. 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL: 

A. LIMTIED PUBLIC COMMENT: 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 

D. PUBLIC HEARINGS: none 

E. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. PUD/SUP 2015-04 Minor Amendment with Site Plan Review – LochenHeath Golf Cottage 

2. 2015-06 Site Plan Review – Gokey Apartments 

3. Planning Commission Agenda Format 

F. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Amendment 036: Medical Marihuana Dispensaries and Cultivation Operations

2. Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance

3. Tent Sale Ordinance

G. RECEIVE AND FILE 
1. Approved Minutes of: 

a. Township Board Minutes 11/10/15 

b. Parks and Trails Committee Minutes 11/06/15 

H. ACTION: 
1. Approve Draft Minutes of: 

a. Planning Commission Minutes 11/09/15 

2. Adopt 2016 Meeting Schedules for: 
a. Planning Commission 

b. Zoning Board of Appeals 

I. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR: 
1. ___________________________________________ 

2. ___________________________________________ 

J. CORRESPONDENCE: 

1. Planning and Zoning News, Vol. 34 No. 1, November 2015

K. PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER PC BUSINESS 
1. Zoning Administrator Report: Shawn Winter 

2. Planning Consultant Report: John Iacoangeli 

3. Township Board Report: Doug White 

4. Parks and Trails Committee Report: Marcie Timmins 

ADJOURN: 

ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

December 14, 2015 7:00 p.m. 

New Format Sample


	1. 2015-12-14 PC Agenda
	2. 2015-12-14 PC Memo
	3. 111015 Township Board meeting
	4. 2015-11-06 Parks and Trails Minutes - APPROVED
	5. 2015-11-09 PC Minutes - DRAFT w correspondence
	2015-11-09 PC Minutes - DRAFT
	2015-11-09 PC Minutes - B. Kelley

	6. 2016 PC Meeting Dates
	ZA - Memo re Meeting Dates
	2016 Calendar
	ZBA Dates Email

	7. Medical Marihuana
	9.26 Medical Marihauna Amendment 036 - DETAIL
	9.26 Medical Marihuana Amendment - COUNTY PC REVIEW

	8. PUD Report w Map
	8. PUD Report
	2015-12-14 PUD Staff Report
	Planned Development Ordinance [10-30-2015] COMMENTS

	Zoning_PUD

	9. LochenHeath
	2015-04 LochenHeath Golf Course Cottage
	LochenHeath Application
	LochenHeath Golf Cottage Site Plan
	2015-12-01 SESC Determination Form
	2015-12-10 Metro Fire Review email

	10. Gokey Apartments
	PA-Gokey Apartments_Final
	2015-12-07 BRI Gokey Landscape Review
	2015-12-04 Acme Apts - Phase I
	2015-12-10 Acme Apts - Site Plan v3
	Documents C0 COVER
	Documents C1-1 DEMO
	Documents C1-2 SITE PLAN
	Documents C1-3 UTILITY
	Documents C1-4 GRADING DRAINAGE

	Building plan and elevation typical
	2015-11-24 Gokey Apts Owner Authorization
	2015-12-01 Metro Email re Sprinkler Exemption
	2015-12-04 Health Dept. Email re Well
	application
	Project Narrative

	11. 2015-12-14 PC Agenda DRAFT FORMAT SAMPLE



